
BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Monday, July 13, 2015

Regular Meeting 7:00 P.M.

Boardroom
5072 Benson Road

Union City, CA 94587

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

1. Call to Order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Roll Call.

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 15, 2015.

Motion 5. Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 17, 2015.

Motion 6. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of June 22, 2015.

7. Written Communications.

8. Oral Communications.

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting). This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address
and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda. If the subject relates to an agenda item, the
speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered. Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30
minutes per subject. Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion.

Public Hearing 9. Public Hearing: 1) Confirming Sewer Service Charge Ordinance No. 31.38, 2) Adopting
Sewer Service Charge for Fiscal Year 2016, and 3) Setting and Collecting Sewer Service
Charges for Fiscal Year 2016 on the Tax Roll (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance
Committee).

Motion 10. Resolution No. ____, Considering Protests and Establishing Sewer Service Charge
Rates for Fiscal Year 2016 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).

Motion 11. Adopt Ordinance No. 31.38, Amending Ordinance No. 31.37, Setting the Sewer Service
Charges Specified Therein for Fiscal Year 2016 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance
Committee).

Motion 12. Adopting Final Operating and Capacity Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 2016 (to be
reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).

Page 1 of 193Page 1 of 193



Motion 13. Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Lease Agreement with the California
State Lands Commission for a Sewer Crossing at Scott Creek in the City of Fremont (to
be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).

Motion 14. Resolution No. _____, Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement from the Alameda County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District Located Near Fremont Boulevard and
Lakeview Boulevard in the City of Fremont (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community
Affairs Committee).

Motion 15. Election of Officers for the Board of Directors for FY 2016.

Information 16. Information Items:
a. Check Register.
b. Agreement with RMC Water and Environment for Flow Model and Capacity

Analysis Professional Services (to be reviewed by the Construction Committee).
c. Agreement with Carollo Engineers for General Engineering Services (to be

reviewed by the Construction Committee).
d. Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Update (to be reviewed by the

Budget & Finance Committee).
e. Report on the EBDA Commission Meeting of June 18, 2015.
f. Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

Information 17. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):
a. Legal & Community Affairs Committee – Wednesday, July 8, 2015, at 4:30 p.m.
b. Construction Committee – Thursday, July 9, 2015, at 8:45 a.m.
c. Budget & Finance Committee – Thursday, July 9, 2015, at 4:30 p.m.
d. Personnel Committee – will not meet.

Information 18. General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board).

Information 19. Other Business:
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District

business and are welcome to request information from staff.
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.

20. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom
on Monday, July 27, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary
District at least one working day prior to the meeting).

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered. If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda,
the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared. Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item.

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible. Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510)
477 7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

Page 2 of 193Page 2 of 193



NOTICE OF All meetings will be held in
COMMITTEE MEETING the General Manager’s Office

5072 Benson Road, Union City, CA 94587

REVISED
BOARD MEETING OF JULY 13, 2015

Committee Membership:
Budget and Finance Directors Anjali Lathi and Tom Handley (Alt. – Pat Kite)
Construction Committee Directors Pat Kite and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Manny Fernandez)
Legal/Community Affairs Directors Pat Kite and Tom Handley (Alt. –Anjali Lathi)
Legislative Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Jennifer Toy (Alt–Tom Handley)
Personnel Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Jennifer Toy)
Audit Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Tom Handley (Alt. Jennifer Toy)

Legal/Community Affairs Committee, Wednesday, July 8, 2015, at 4:30 p.m.

13. Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Lease Agreement with the California State Lands
Commission for a Sewer Crossing at Scott Creek in the City of Fremont.

14. Resolution No. ____, Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement from the Alameda County Flood Control
and Water Conservation District Located Near Fremont Boulevard and Lakeview Boulevard in the
City of Fremont.

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Construction Committee, Thursday, July 9, 2015, at 8:45 a.m.

16b. Agreement with RMC Water and Environment for Flow Model and Capacity Analysis Professional
Services.

16c. Agreement with Carollo Engineers for General Engineering.
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Budget & Finance Committee, Thursday, July 9, 2015, at 4:30 p.m.

9. Public Hearing: 1) Confirming Sewer Service Charge Ordinance No. 31.38, 2) Adopting Sewer
Service Charge for Fiscal Year 2016, and 3) Setting and Collecting Sewer Service Charges for Fiscal
Year 2016 on the Tax Roll.

10. Resolution No. ____, Considering Protests and Establishing Sewer Service Charge Rates for Fiscal
Year 2016.

11. Adopt Ordinance No. 31.38, Amendment of Amending Ordinance No. 31.37, Setting the Sewer
Service Charges Specified Therein for Fiscal Year 2016.

12. Adopting Final Operating and Capacity Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 2016.

16d. Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Update.

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors.
(Gov. Code Section 11123)

Committee Meetings are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken.
Page 3 of 193Page 3 of 193



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

June 15, 2015

CALL TO ORDER

President Fernandez called the special meeting to order at 6:39 p.m.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President 
  Jennifer Toy, Vice President
  Tom Handley, Secretary
  Pat Kite, Director
  Anjali Lathi, Director

STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager  
  Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, & Construction Manager
  Curtis Bosick, Associate Engineer

GUESTS: Dave Richardson, RMC Water and Environment
  Mark Takemoto, RMC Water and Environment

PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

BOARD WORKSHOP – TREATMENT PLANT SITE STUDY PRESENTATION

Staff presented the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Use Study, prepared in 
partnership with RMC Water and Environment and PPC Land Consultants.

ADJOURNMENT:

The special meeting was adjourned at 8:28 p.m. to the Hayward Marsh Options Study Special 
Meeting Workshop in the Boardroom on Wednesday, June 17, 2015, at 6:30 p.m.

The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday,
June 22, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 of 193Page 4 of 193



SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 

_________________________   __________________________
REGINA McEVOY     TOM HANDLEY
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY

APPROVED:

__________________________
MANNY FERNANDEZ
PRESIDENT

Adopted this 13th day of July, 2015

Page 5 of 193Page 5 of 193



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

June 17, 2015

CALL TO ORDER

President Fernandez called the special meeting to order at 6:41 p.m.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President 
  Jennifer Toy, Vice President
  Tom Handley, Secretary
  Pat Kite, Director
  Anjali Lathi, Director

STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
  Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager
  Tim Grillo, Research and Support Team Coach

GUESTS: Mark Takemoto, Senior Project Manager at RMC Water and Environment

PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

BOARD WORKSHOP – HAYWARD MARSH OPTIONS STUDY

Staff presented the Hayward Regional Shoreline Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Options Study,
Development of Revised Rehabilitation Options, prepared in partnership with East Bay Regional 
Park District, RMC Water and Environment, Moffatt & Nichol, and WRA Environmental 
Consultants. 

ADJOURNMENT:

The special meeting was adjourned at 7:43 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting in the
Boardroom on Monday, June 22, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.  

SUBMITTED:     ATTEST:

_________________________   __________________________
REGINA McEVOY     TOM HANDLEY
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY 

APPROVED: 

__________________________
MANNY FERNANDEZ
PRESIDENT

Adopted this 13th day of July, 2015
Page 6 of 193Page 6 of 193



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

June 22, 2015

CALL TO ORDER

President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President 
  Jennifer Toy, Vice President
  Tom Handley, Secretary
  Pat Kite, Director

ABSENT: Anjali Lathi, Director

STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
  Dave O’Hara, District Counsel
  Karen Murphy, Special District Counsel
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager 
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager  
  Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, & Construction Manager
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager
  Leah Castella, Attorney
  Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Team Coach
  Michelle Powell, Communications Coordinator
  Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst
  Paul Johnson, Storekeeper II
  Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary

GUESTS: Alice Johnson, League of Women Voters

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF JUNE 8, 2015

It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Vice President Toy, to Approve the Minutes 
of the Board of Director’s Meeting held June 8, 2015.  Motion carried with the following 
vote:

AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Toy
NOES: None
ABSENT: Lathi
ABSTAIN: None

Page 7 of 193Page 7 of 193



MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR MAY 2015

This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  General Manager Eldredge 
reported the following:

Odor Complaints:  Two odor complaints were received during the month of May, 
both were from Fremont. The first complaint was received from an employee of the 
Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) who was driving near the 
Irvington Pump Station when they detected an odor. A District mechanic was 
dispatched to investigate the facility and surrounding area, and no odor was found.
The information was relayed to the BAAQMD employee. The second complaint 
was received from a resident who reported an odor at her home on Old Canyon 
Road. District staff inspected the USD manholes and mains in the area, and no 
odor was detected. The homeowner was advised to fill her P-traps because they 
may be dry. The homeowner was instructed to contact her homeowners 
association if the odor returns as the lateral is connected to a private main.
Safety:

o We had one first aid incident where an employee had a small cut on his 
hand.  The employee was sent to Urgent care to prevent any infection.

o We also had a vehicle incident where a vactor truck hit the overhang above 
the fuel Island.  An investigation was completed to review the causes.

o There was an incident in the thickener building where a pipe plug blew out 
while under pressure.  No one was in the building at the time, but 
employees found the mess from sludge spraying the area.  This highlights 
the need for precautions while this old building undergoes replacement.

o The employee that had the work related injury reported in February is still 
off work.  He had surgery in early May and hopes to be back to work in 
mid-June. 

o We received the draft report from California Sanitation Risk Management 
Authority (CSRMA) for our Risk Control Survey.  The final report will be 
presented to the Board upon receipt. 

o We completed the update of the Heat Illness policy which meets new 
OSHA requirements.  Training will be planned as we get enter the warm
weather season. 

Staffing and Personnel:
o Completed Recruitments Resulting in Promotions:

FMC Mechanical Maintenance Coach (Scott Martin; effective 6/1/15)
o Other Completed Recruitments:

HR Analyst (Leticia Najera)
o Recruitments Opened:

Receptionist
FMC Planner/Scheduler (internal)

Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group:  All Work Groups continue to meet 
the goal for at-work hours per employee per week (more than 34 hours).  The 
District continues to meet the goal for average annual sick leave used per 
employee (less than 47 hours/year).

Page 8 of 193Page 8 of 193



Principal Financial Analyst Scott reported the following on behalf of Business Services: 
Revenues:  

o $233,000 received in capacity fees in May  
Most received from residential construction 
$72,000 received from Kidango

o Received $872,000 in State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan proceeds

Expenses:
o All Work Groups are under budget
o Operating expenses by type are under budget

General Manager Eldredge reported the following:

Technical Services:
o Customer Service:

17 trouble calls dispatched 
36 new lateral permits issued
The website redesign is undergoing adjustments prior to Board 
presentation.

o Environmental Compliance
Completed 64 Stormwater (Urban Runoff) inspections
Completed 46 FOG (fats, oils, and grease for restaurants) inspections
Conducted seven outreach events

Collection Services:
o Completed over 23 miles of cleaning
o Completed over 11 miles of televising sewer lines
o Assisted City of San Jose with spill estimation

Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction:
o Replaced centrifuge end bearing in Centrifuge #1 and determined cause of 

failure
o Replaced Cogen #2 gas proportioning valve
o Overhauled Centrifuge #3

Treatment & Disposal:
o Attended Bay Area Clean Water Agencies Air Permit meeting
o Continued discussion with PG&E to determine best rate schedule for the 

Irvington Pump Station (IPS)
o The Cogen engines produced 75% of the Plant’s power for the month

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

There were no written communications.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

There were no oral communications.

CONSIDER THE CLAIM OF PAUL E. WHITMAN, #5 KOOTENAI COURT, FOR COST 
OF LATERAL REPAIR

This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  District Counsel 
O’Hara stated Paul Whitman, owner of #5 Kootenai Court in Fremont, submitted a claim 
Page 9 of 193Page 9 of 193



for $7,380 for repair of his sewer lateral.  The claim was submitted April 20, 2015.  The 
District has paid $500 for the replacement of the broken wye connection.  Due to clear 
photographic evidence showing the root intrusion originated from Mr. Whitman’s lateral, 
staff recommended the Board deny the claim. 

Director Kite requested a root intrusion article be included in a future District newsletter.  
Secretary Handley requested the District post information regarding root intrusion, with 
images, on the District website.  

It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Secretary Handley, to reject the Claim of Paul 
E. Whitman, #5 Kootenai Court, for Cost of Lateral Repair. Motion carried with the 
following vote:

AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Toy
NOES: None
ABSENT: Lathi
ABSTAIN: None

PUBLIC HEARING TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 34.07, AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING 
FOR THE GENERAL REGULATION OF PRIVATE AND PUBLIC SEWERS, PLAN 
REVIEW, ISSUANCE OF CONSTRUCTION PERMITS, INSPECTION OF SEWER
INSTALLATION, AND THE COLLECTION OF FEES FOR THESE SERVICES, AND TO 
REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 34.06

This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee. Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated staff did not receive any comments on the proposed ordinance 
prior to the meeting.

President Fernandez opened the public hearing.  There were no speakers on the matter.  
President Fernandez closed the public hearing.

RESOLUTION NO. 2761 ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 34.07, AN ORDINANCE 
PROVIDING FOR THE GENERAL REGULATION OF PRIVATE AND PUBLIC 
SEWERS, PLAN REVIEW, ISSUANCE OF CONSTRUCTION PERMITS, INSPECTION 
OF SEWER INSTALLATION, AND THE COLLECTION OF FEES FOR THESE 
SERVICES, AND REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 34.06

This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated District Ordinance No. 34.06 provides for plan review, issuance 
of construction permits, inspection of sewer installation, and collection of fees for said
services.  The Ordinance also governs the handling of deposits and includes the fees for 
Collection System services.  The proposed revisions to the Ordinance include an update 
of the material and service fees used to calculate fees for work performed by the District,
an update to contractors’ required insurance limits, and addition of a Sewer-in-Steel 
Casing line item.  The proposed revisions also provide for the ability to disconnect a sewer
service in case of emergency.

It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Vice President Toy, to Adopt Resolution       
No. 2761, Adopting Ordinance No. 34.07, An Ordinance Providing for the General 
Regulation of Private and Public Sewers, Plan Review, Issuance of Construction Permits, 
Inspection of Sewer Installation, and the Collection of Fees for these Services, and 
Repeal Ordinance No. 34.06. Motion carried with the following vote:
Page 10 of 193Page 10 of 193



AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Toy
NOES: None
ABSENT: Lathi
ABSTAIN: None

SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING FOR SEWER SERVICE CHARGES FOR FY16

This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Principal Financial Analyst 
Scott stated a public hearing is needed to adopt Sewer Service Charge Ordinance          
No. 31.38, establish sewer service charges for FY 2016, and set and collect sewer service 
charges for FY 2016 on the tax roll.  Staff proposed the public hearing be conducted in 
the Boardroom and be set for 7:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, 
on July 13, 2015. Following Board approval, staff will publish the notice of public hearing 
in the Argus newspaper on June 30 and July 7, 2015.

It was moved by Secretary Handley, seconded by President Fernandez, to Schedule a 
Public Hearing for Sewer Service Charges for FY16.  Motion carried with the following 
vote:

AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Toy
NOES: None
ABSENT: Lathi
ABSTAIN: None

AWARD THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE MISCELLANEOUS SANITARY 
SEWER SPOT REPAIRS PROJECT - PHASE VI TO CRATUS, INC.

This item was reviewed by the Construction Committee.  Technical Services Manager 
Ghossain stated the District’s routine television inspection of the collection system 
identifies pipelines with maintenance problems and structural defects. A number of 
sewers located throughout the District have been identified as having structural defects 
in need of open-cut repair.  Due to difficult conditions, staff determined the repair work 
should be completed by a contractor and the project was advertised for bids. Staff 
recommend the Board award the construction contract for the Miscellaneous Sanitary 
Sewer Spot Repairs Project – Phase VI to Cratus, Inc. in the amount of $324,000.

It was moved by, Director Kite, seconded by Vice President Toy, to Award the 
Construction Contract for the Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs Project - 
Phase VI to Cratus, Inc. Motion carried with the following vote:

AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Toy
NOES: None
ABSENT: Lathi
ABSTAIN: None

RESOLUTION NO. 2762, ADOPT A PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FY16

This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Principal Financial Analyst 
Scott stated the preliminary FY 2016 budget was presented at the Board meeting held 
June 8, 2015.  Staff will present the final FY 2015 budget to the Board on or before 

Page 11 of 193Page 11 of 193



August 24, 2015, and stated the proposed resolution would continue the FY 2015 budget 
until August 24, 2015.

It was moved by Secretary Handley, seconded by President Fernandez, to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2762, Adopting a Preliminary Budget for FY 16.  Motion carried with the 
following vote:

AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Toy
NOES: None
ABSENT: Lathi
ABSTAIN: None

AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT FOR THE
CLEAN WATER PROGRAM ACTIVITIES AND ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES WITH 
THE CITY OF FREMONT

This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated the Federal Clean Water Act requires storm water discharges 
from municipal storm drain systems be regulated under the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES).  The San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control 
Board’s (RWQCB) Water Quality Control Plan requires all cities in Alameda County have 
the same NPDES permit coverage, which led to the creation of the Alameda Countywide 
Clean Water Program (ACCWP) Joint Powers Agreement (JPA).  It is the responsibility 
of each municipality to conduct the activities identified in the ACCWP’s Storm-Water 
Management Plan, and the City of Fremont requested the District include the necessary 
tasks in the existing Pretreatment and Pollution Prevention inspection program. The 
contract amount for FY 16 reflects an increase of approximately 3% over the prior year’s 
amount, and the amount for each subsequent year reflects a 3% increase.  No additional 
staff will be required to meet the needs of this contract.  The City of Fremont authorized 
the City Manager to execute the subject agreement at the City Council meeting held    
June 9, 2015. 

It was moved by Vice President Toy, seconded by Secretary Handley, to Authorize the 
General Manager to Execute the Agreement for the Clean Water Program Activities and 
Enforcement Procedures with the City of Fremont.  Motion carried with the following vote:

AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Toy
NOES: None
ABSENT: Lathi
ABSTAIN: None

INFORMATION ITEMS:

Check Register
All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.

Discuss, Consider, and Provide Direction Regarding Options for Boardmember 
Internal Committee Assignments 

General Manager Eldredge stated Board Policy No. 3070.2 requires Directors annually 
provide their interest in serving on internal committees to the Board President.  The 
internal committees are as follows:  Budget & Finance, Construction, Legal/Community 
Page 12 of 193Page 12 of 193



Affairs, Legislative, Personnel, and Audit.  In the past, preferences have been stated 
verbally or in writing at the first meeting in July.  The following options were presented:

Continue past practice and have Boardmembers provide their written requests for 
internal committee assignments at the first meeting in July
Boardmembers provide written requests for internal committee assignments in 
June
Boardmembers verbally express preferences in open session at the first meeting 
in July

The Board directed staff to proceed with the second option.  Staff will collect internal 
committee assignment preferences from each Boardmember, and forward to the Board 
President who will appoint representatives and alternates.  Internal committee 
assignments will be presented in the July 27, 2015, Board meeting packet. Additionally, 
Board Policy 3070.2 will be modified accordingly to reflect this change when said policy 
is brought back before the Board for consideration.

Debriefing of the Open House Held May 9, 2015 

A desk item was prepared for this item and submitted for Board review.  The desk item 
was added to the June 22, 2015, Board meeting packet.  

General Manager Eldredge stated Union Sanitary District hosted its first Open House on 
Saturday, May 9, 2015.  Planning for the event began approximately two months in 
advance, and staff developed a variety of educational and interactive activities designed 
to engage visitors.  The Open House was well attended, with over 1,100 guests counted 
throughout the event.  During the event, 265 people who were unable to take a tour during  
the Open House indicated they would be interested in participating in a Plant tour at a 
later date.  Staff will be meeting to discuss how best to accommodate tour requests, and 
interested parties will be contacted.  A list of observations and lessons learned has been 
generated, and will be memorialized as a resource for similar events in the future. The 
total cost of the event was stated along with amounts spent for certain categories such 
as supplies, advertising, and labor.  In consideration of the time and effort necessary to 
plan for such an event, staff recommended the District wait until the 2018 centennial 
celebration to hold another Open House.

Alice Johnson, representing the League of Women Voters, stated she attended the Open 
House and complimented staff on their efforts. 

COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS:
The Budget & Finance, Construction Committee, and Legal/Community Affairs 
Committees met. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT:
General Manager Eldredge reported the following:  

The 60th Annual California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Conference 
will be held in San Diego, August 19-21, 2015.
The annual financial audit has begun, and will continue for approximately two
weeks. 
Treatment & Disposal Services Night Coach finalist interviews will be conducted 
June 23, 2015.

Page 13 of 193Page 13 of 193



Finalist interviews for the Receptionist and Human Resource Manager positions 
were held recently, and a final decision will be made soon. 
The General Manager attended the Alameda County Water District (ACWD) Board 
meeting on June 11, 2015.  The ACWD Board approved the ACWD/USD 
Recycled Water Feasibility Study Cost Sharing Agreement item by a 4-1 vote.
The District Legal Counsel orientation and transition is ongoing, and the official 
transition date will be announced within the next few weeks. 

OTHER BUSINESS:

Director Kite stated she and her Red Hat Society group participated in a Plant tour on 
June 18, 2015.  Director Kite complimented Environmental Outreach Representative 
Dattawalker and Lab Director Moy on their presentations to the group.  

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting was adjourned at 8:08 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting in the
Boardroom on Monday, July 13, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.  

SUBMITTED:     ATTEST:

_________________________   __________________________
REGINA McEVOY     TOM HANDLEY
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY

APPROVED:

__________________________
MANNY FERNANDEZ
PRESIDENT

Adopted this 13th day of July, 2015

Page 14 of 193Page 14 of 193



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley

     Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi

    Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E.
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

DATE: July 6, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Rich Cortes, Business Services Manager 
Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of July 13, 2015 
PUBLIC HEARING: 1) CONFIRMING SEWER SERVICE CHARGE 
ORDINANCE NO. 31.38, 2) ADOPTING SEWER SERVICE CHARGES FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2016, AND 3) SETTING AND COLLECTING SEWER SERVICE 
CHARGES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016 ON THE TAX ROLL. 

Recommendation 

1. Staff report and Board questions of staff

2. Open the public hearing - receive any oral or written communications from the public
regarding the proposed ordinance.

3. Close the public hearing and consider action on the following two agenda items

Background 

The Notice of Public Hearing to set the Sewer Service Charges for Fiscal Year 2016 has been published 
in the Argus newspaper on June 30 and July 7, 2015.  Staff will be prepared to present the subsequent 
Board agenda items on the Sewer Service Charge rate at the public hearing and answer questions from 
the Board and audience. 

On April 18, 2013, a notice complying with Proposition 218 was sent to all property owners notifying 
them of a proposed 5.7% per year rate increase for the next three years.  FY 2016 will be the third year 
of the three year period. 

Page 15 of 193Page 15 of 193



Notification Process 
In addition to the 218 public hearing held in 2013 that set the rates for Fiscal Years 2014, 2015, and 
2016; Health and Safety Code Section 5471 and 5473 requires that an annual public hearing be 
conducted, and a legal notice be placed in a newspaper.  This annual process is required because the 
District places its sewer service charges on the tax roll.  This step would not be necessary if USD billed 
on a semi regular basis as other agencies do.  Placing the sewer service charges on the tax roll helps 
USD keep its rates low.  If the District did not place sewer service charges on the tax roll, additional 
staff positions would be required and the assistance of an outside service would be necessary to 
complete the billing process. The costs of these additional positions and services would exceed the 
amount the County charges USD to place its sewer service charges on the tax roll.   

In order to place the sewer service charges on property taxes the County of Alameda requires all 
information be provided to them no later than August 10th each year.  Once rates have been approved 
by the USD Board of Directors, staff must format the list of parcels and corresponding rates to meet 
the County’s requirements.  This process usually requires three to four weeks to complete and verify. 

Public Notices Received 
As of the publication of this staff report, the District received seven emails regarding the proposed rate 
increase or alleging a lack of transparency.  A copy of said emails are attached for reference. 

Several of the aforementioned emails referenced similar financial statistics pertaining to sewer service 
charges, employee compensation, and operating expenses.  Some of this information was inaccurate 
and confusing.  The most common statements made were: 

In the last 10 years (2006 – 2015) USD has raised the sewer service charge by 74%.   
o The total percentage of rate increase over this period of time adds up to 56.9%.

During the same time period, employee compensation increased 65%.  
o During this period of time, employee’s salaries increased by 45.5% while employee

total compensation (salary, health benefits, pension etc.) increased by 54.6%. 
Nearly 2/3 of USD’s operating expenses are spent on employee compensation.   

o Approximately 41% of the District’s total budget accounts for salary and benefits for
employees.  

5.7% increase compared to CPI 
The Consumer Price Index (CPI), typically referred to as inflation, for the San Francisco Bay Area has 
averaged approximately 3% annually.  The proposed rate increase does exceed inflation as it takes 
operational and capital increases into consideration, which are not the types of expenses included in 
CPI computations.  Capital expenses, or the cost of projects required to maintain the integrity of the 
District’s infrastructure, are based upon a prioritized need and life cycle of the infrastructure.  If the 
District were to limit rate increases to accommodate inflation only there would be a short-fall in the 
funds necessary to safely and responsibly operate the District and rehabilitate infrastructure.  The 
difference in revenues between 5.7% and 3% over the next four years would equate to approximately 
14.5 million dollars in lost revenue.   

Without this revenue, District staff would have to be significantly reduced and/or capital projects 
would be postponed or not completed.  All of the projects proposed in the District’s Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) are necessary, thus delaying projects increases the opportunity for failure, 
increased project costs, and possibly larger rate increases in the future.  Approximately 15 projects in 
the current CIP budget would need to be deferred to later date if revenues were decreased.  An 

Page 16 of 193Page 16 of 193



example of some of the projects that would be impacted include: Aeration Tank Roof and Blower 
Replacement, Generator Control and Motor Control Center Replacement, Control Box No. 1 and 
Headworks Improvements, Primary Clarifiers Rehabilitation, and Secondary Clarifiers Rehabilitation. 
Deferring and deleting planned CIP projects increases the risk of failure.  When infrastructure fails, 
repair and replacement costs increase due to being in an emergency situation. These increased costs 
are attributed to not going through the normal competitive bid process, costs for clean-up, legal costs 
due to claims for damage settlements, traffic delay costs, negative environmental impact leading to 
permit violations, and fines. It is generally accepted that for these reasons the costs for emergency or 
failure repairs are much greater than planned repair and replacement costs. The deferment of projects 
does not secure a reduced rate for the foreseeable future. These projects will need to be completed 
at some point, either once the asset fails, increasing costs as previously mentioned, or as a planned 
CIP. 

If rates were reduced to 3%, and currently utilizing the CIP budget being recommended by staff, the 
Structural Renewal & Replacement Fund balances would be negative. Under this scenario negative 
fund balances would begin in FY 2018 and would extend for 5 consecutive years with the largest 
negative balance of $16.2 million occurring in FY 2020. This would not only violate the District’s 
adopted Reserve Fund Policy, but also significantly weaken its financial stability. 

Page 17 of 193Page 17 of 193



Page 18 of 193Page 18 of 193



Page 19 of 193Page 19 of 193



Page 20 of 193Page 20 of 193



Page 21 of 193Page 21 of 193



Page 22 of 193Page 22 of 193



Page 23 of 193Page 23 of 193



Page 24 of 193Page 24 of 193



Page 25 of 193Page 25 of 193



Page 26 of 193Page 26 of 193



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley

                                                                                                                Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi

                                                                                                               Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E.
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

DATE: July 6, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Rich Cortes, Business Services Manager
Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No.10 - Meeting of July 13, 2015 
RESOLUTION NO. ____, CONSIDERING PROTESTS AND 
ESTABLISHING SEWER SERVICE CHARGE RATES FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2016  

Recommendation

A majority of the property owners have not protested the rate increase in accordance with 
Proposition 218 requirements.  The attached Resolution should be considered for 
adoption by the Board of Directors after the public hearing to consider sewer service 
charges is closed.  Any and all protests are hereby overruled.

Attachment

Page 27 of 193Page 27 of 193



RESOLUTION NO. ____

RESOLUTION CONSIDERING PROTESTS TO AND ESTABLISHING REPORT ON 
SEWER SERVICE CHARGE RATES FOR UNION SANITARY DISTRICT FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2016

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, 
Alameda County, California, that:

WHEREAS, this Board intends to adopt sewer service charges as described in 
Ordinace 31.38; and

WHEREAS, this Board intends to adopt Ordinance No. 31.38 establishing sewer 
charge rates and to elect to have sewer service charges collected on the tax roll for the 
Fiscal Year 2016, and directed the preparation of a written report containing the rates; 
and

WHEREAS, said written report and Ordinance were duly prepared and filed with 
the Secretary of the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT; and 

WHEREAS, this Board appointed the time and place of hearing protests to said 
report and directed notice; and

WHEREAS, notice was given of the time therein stated in the manner provided by 
law as it appears by the Affidavit of Publication on file in the office of the Secretary of said 
District; and

WHEREAS, said matter came on regularly for hearing at the time fixed; and

WHEREAS, all written protests and other written communications were 
summarized at said meeting and all persons desiring to be heard were fully heard;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED AS FOLLOWS:

I. That objections to and protests against said report were not made by the owners 
of a majority of the separate parcels of property within the Service District against 
which sewer service charge rates for the services and facilities provided by the
District were fixed.

2. That all objections to and protests against said report have been heard by this 
Board and that said objections and protests be, and each of them are, hereby 
overruled.

3. That said report be, and it is, hereby adopted in full without revision, change,         
reduction, modification, and that sewer service charges based upon these rates 

Page 28 of 193Page 28 of 193



and the 2016 rates shall be collected on the tax roll of the County of Alameda in 
the manner provided by law.

4. That the sewer service charges for the fiscal year 2016 be increased as described 
in Ordinance 31.38.

5. That the Secretary of this District be, and is, hereby directed to file with the County 
Auditor of Alameda County forthwith, a copy of said Ordinance fixing the rates, 
upon which shall be endorsed over his/her signature a statement that the 
Ordinance has been finally adopted by the Board of Directors of the UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT.

6. The County Auditor of Alameda County shall, upon receipt of a copy of said 
Ordinance and a report showing the amounts of the charges based upon currently 
adopted rates, enter the amounts of the charges against the respective lots or 
parcels as they appear on the current assessment roll for the Fiscal Year 2016. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted and 
passed by the Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, Alameda 
County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 13th day of July 2015.

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

______________________________
President, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

ATTEST:

______________________________
Secretary, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

Page 29 of 193Page 29 of 193



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/ 
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE:  July 6, 2015

MEMO TO:  Board of Directors

FROM:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
   Rich Cortes, Business Services Manager
   Maria Scott, Principle Financial Analyst

SUBJECT:  Agenda Item No. 11 – Meeting of July 13, 2015
ADOPT ORDINANCE NO.31.38, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 
31.37, SETTING THE SEWER SERVICE CHARGES SPECIFIED 
THEREIN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016  

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Ordinance No. 31.38, amending
Ordinance No. 31.37, setting the Sewer Service Charges specified therein for Fiscal 
Year 2016.

Strategic Purpose: 

The California Constitution requires utility rates not to exceed the proportional cost of 
service. Due to rising costs, rates charged during FY 2016 will increase over earlier 
rates. To maintain rates equal to the proportional cost of service, District staff 
recommends amending the rate ordinance to reflect the following rates for FY 2016, 
which are based on the costs to serve each customer class. The classes are defined as 
the District has in past years and reflect industry practice and staff’s professional 
judgment that customers in each class have comparable service costs.

Discussion:

The Union Sanitary District provides sanitation services to nearly 335,000 residents in 
Fremont, Newark, and Union City. In April 2013, in compliance with the California 
Constitution and other state laws, the District sent notices to all property owners of 
proposed annual rate increases through FY 2016. Those rates were imposed by

Page 30 of 193Page 30 of 193



Ordinance No. 31.36, adopted in 2014, and by Ordinance No. 31.37, adopted in 2015 
with the final year of the three-year phased increased to be adopted by the ordinance 
presented here.

This report memorializes the methodology used to calculate the District’s FY 2016 rates, 
which are designed to recover each class’s proportionate share of the revenue required 
to provide safe, adequate, and lawful wastewater service. The ratemaking model 
includes the following steps:

Determining Revenue Requirements

First, District staff compiles use and cost data and, based on a three-year 
average of plant influent and audited financial records of the District. The 
revenue requirement calculation reflects reasonable assumptions based on 
staff’s professional judgment and experience with our services and our industry.
For example, staff assumed a 0.4% residential growth rate for FY 2016. 

 Staff also concluded that infiltration and inflow (“I & I”) should be recovered as a 
customer cost. This is because the District has no control over the pipes that run 
from residential and non-residential structures to the District’s main pipelines.
These “customer lateral pipes” allow more I & I into the wastewater system than 
do the District’s own facilities. What is more, the District has no other means to 
recover this cost and these costs are necessary and lawful service costs.

 Staff estimated expenditures for capital improvement projects (“CIP”) based on a 
ten-year plan prepared by District engineers. Each CIP project, and the fund 
paying for it, is listed as a contribution to the revenue requirement. While staff 
has used a ten-year average in the past, in consultation with a financial 
consultant, staff concluded in recent years that two five-year averages of capital 
expenditures provide a better projection of those costs.  

When allocating the cost of CIP projects, staff assumed not all projects will be 
completed when planned and that some will be delayed. Based on historical 
performance, staff assumed 90% of the CIP budget for FY 2016 projects will 
actually be incurred in that year.  

 Staff relied on its professional judgment in projecting a 4% increase in operations 
and maintenance expenses. This amount is based on a memorandum of 
understanding with labor unions that includes 3.5% yearly increases for salary, 
cost of living adjustments, and benefits. Operations and maintenance also 
increase due to escalating costs for inputs such as chemicals and power. 

 Expenditures for “operations and maintenance” are calculated as part of the 
same workgroup for convenience.

Page 31 of 193Page 31 of 193



The revenue requirement includes a line item for “special project expenses,” 
which vary from year to year. These are one-time projects and studies. Including 
such expenses in a working group’s annual operating budget would make those 
budgets volatile and conceal underlying changes in personnel and other costs 
which management wishes to track. Therefore, staff segregates these items into 
a special projects budget. The amounts allocated to the budget depend upon 
which studies need to be initiated or updated in a given year, or whether there 
are expenses for public information, such as elections and rate-making notices.

Necessary and appropriate reserves must also be calculated. In 2005, the 
District hired Bartle Wells Associates, a recognized rate-making and financial 
management consultant, to prepare a financial plan and develop reserve fund 
policy and targets. The Board accepted this report in 2006 and the report has 
since become the basis of the District’s reserve policy and targets. Staff included
as revenue requirements “projected provisions and other transfers” to comply 
with the Board’s policy calling for emergency reserves. 

The District does not have a separate rate stabilization fund. Rather it relies on 
reserves for this purpose and annually budgets to either add to or draw upon
reserves, and these calculations are therefore included in the revenue 
requirement as well.

Functionalizing and Allocating Costs

The next steps of ratemaking are functionalizing costs and allocating them to 
customer classes. 

Staff allocates revenue requirements to four parameters: Customer, Flow, 
Chemical Oxygen Demand (“COD”), and Suspended Solids (“SS”). These 
allocations are based on industry practice and staff’s professional judgment,
and many are self-explanatory. For instance, staff allocated the expense 
associated with the customer service team on a 100% basis to the parameter 
of Customer. The other three factors reflect the volume and strength of 
wastewater, the three industry-standard parameters used to measure the cost 
to treat and dispose of it.

Staff also uses long-term projections of debt service and CIP loans to 
demonstrate how rate increases will affect debts. Staff uses inputs, outputs, 
and reasonable assumptions to calculate the end-balance for each reserve in 
ten years. The balances are then compared with policy targets to see if 
revenue requirements must be changed to ensure District capacity to meet its 
debt service obligations and capital needs.

Finally, staff develops rates to achieve the revenue requirement that are 
proportional to the cost of service for each customer class.  

Page 32 of 193Page 32 of 193



Conclusion:

The proposed rates for FY 2016 reflect the proportional cost of service for the properties 
of each customer class. Therefore, the Board of Directors should amend its ordinance 
to adopt the proposed rates.

Page 33 of 193Page 33 of 193



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
ORDINANCE NO.  31.38 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING SEWER SERVICE CHARGES FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2016 FOR SERVICES AND FACILITIES FURNISHED BY DISTRICT'S 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM, COLLECTION PROCEDURES, PENALTIES FOR 
DELINQUENCY, RESTRICTION ON USE OF FUNDS DERIVED, AND ELECTION TO 
HAVE SEWER SERVICE CHARGES COLLECTED ON THE ALAMEDA COUNTY 
PROPERTY TAX ROLL 

The Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT does ordain as follows:

ARTICLE I
GENERAL

SECTION 1.  PURPOSE

(a) The purpose of the sewer service charge is to raise revenue for the cost of 
maintenance and operation of the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT wastewater 
facilities used for the collection, treatment and disposal of wastewater, industrial 
wastewater, industrial waste, and payment of principal and interest on bonds 
and capital recovery costs in accordance with Federal and State Revenue 
Program guidelines. The funds derived from the sewer service charge shall be 
used for only those purposes provided for in Division 5, Part 3, Chapter 6, Article 
4 (commencing with Section 5470) of the Health and Safety Code of the State 
of California.

(b) The purpose of this ordinance is to establish a method of allocating the cost of 
operation of the District's collection, transport, and treatment facilities among 
the users of sewer service in proportion to the cost to serve each. For 
commercial and industrial dischargers, an estimation of the relevant wastewater 
flow constituents and loadings are utilized which are known to be historically 
valid.

(c) Quantity of wastewater flow is an important factor in the cost of collection, 
transport and treatment of industrial and commercial wastewater discharge.  
Therefore, the quantity of discharge is calculated from flow for the prior year.  
These flows may vary widely over time and from customer to customer. The 
District bills industrial and commercial users the following year for what is in 
essence the previous year's discharge. For this reason there can be no 
adjustments to sewer service charges based only upon a change in water usage 
for a particular user. This change in usage will be reflected in the ensuing year's 
bill.

Page 34 of 193Page 34 of 193



ARTICLE II
DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.  DWELLING UNITS

The following residential establishments shall be deemed to have the following number 
of dwelling units:

(a) Single family residential dwelling, designed for occupancy by one family: one 
dwelling unit.

(b) Duplex, triplex, fourplex, townhouse or condominium, apartment house, mobile 
home park or other multi-residential establishment, designed for occupancy for 
living purposes by more than one family, which is divided into separate 
housekeeping units, each of which is designed for occupancy by one family 
only: each housekeeping unit shall be deemed to be one dwelling unit. 

SECTION 2. COMMERCIAL OR INSTITUTIONAL USE

Any parcel or portion thereof discharging domestic wastewater and shall include the 
following:

(a) Parcels used for commercial or business purposes.

(b) Hotel, auto court, motel and similar transient living facilities.

(c) Schools, churches, hospitals, convalescent homes, parks, public office and 
service buildings, public transportation facilities, or other types of public facilities 
or publicly owned facilities available for public use.

SECTION 3. INDUSTRIAL

Any parcel or portion thereof used for manufacturing, processing or other operations 
which discharges non-domestic wastewater by reason of manufacturing, processing 
or other operations involved.

SECTION 4. DOMESTIC WASTEWATER

Wastewater of a quality essentially similar to that of a single family dwelling.

SECTION 5. OWNER

Any person, individual, firm, company, partnership, association, and private or public 
and municipal corporations, the United States of America, the State of California,
districts and all political subdivisions, governmental agencies which owns real property 
from which wastewater flows to the District’s wastewater collection system as reflected 

Page 35 of 193Page 35 of 193



on the Alameda County Assessor’s Roll or, for tax-exempt agencies, in such other 
records upon which the District may reasonably rely. 

SECTION 6.  FAST FOOD RESTAURANTS 

Restaurants that serve all food on disposable plates, cups and utensils.

SECTION 7.  FULL SERVICE RESTAURANTS

Restaurants with sit down service that utilize washable plates, cups or utensils.

ARTICLE III
SEWER SERVICE CHARGE

SECTION 1.  CLASSIFICATION

The owner of each parcel of property as it appears on the Assessor's records of 
Alameda County lying within the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT and upon which there 
are wastewater facilities shall pay a sewer service charge in accordance with the 
purpose for which said parcel is used, as hereinafter set forth in Section 2. In the event 
that the use of any parcel results in the discharge of wastewater in more than one 
classification, there shall be an annual charge for each classification of use of said 
parcel and the annual sewer service charges for such parcel shall be the aggregate of 
all such annual charges.

SECTION 2. RATES

Each individual parcel of land connected to the District sewer system is subject to a 
minimum charge equal to one dwelling unit as listed in (a) below, with the exception of 
those multiple dwelling units which are specified in subsection (b). 

(a) Residential dwelling units as defined in Section 1(a) of Article II: FY 2016 
$377.00 per dwelling unit per year.

           
(b)  Residential dwelling units as defined in Section 1(b) of Article II:  FY 2016    

$326.00 per dwelling unit per year.     

Sewer service charges that exceed the minimum rate specified above in subsection 
(a) shall be calculated as follows: 

(c) Restaurants shall pay either the rate for Fast Food Restaurants or Full Service 
Restaurants as defined in Sections 6 and 7 of Article II.  Unit rates for the volume 
of wastewater discharged are as follows:

Page 36 of 193Page 36 of 193



  Fast Food Restaurants: $7.55 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2016. 

  Full Service Restaurants: $9.65 per 1,000 gallons in FY 2016. 

(d) Commercial or institutional use as defined in Section 2 of Article II, or 
wastewater discharged from industrial uses that are not sampled by the District, 
shall be determined by classifying the wastewater flowing from that parcel into 
one of three strength classifications: strong, moderate or weak.  Unit rates for 
the volume of wastewater discharged and examples of the types of uses which 
fall into the strong, moderate and weak categories are as follows:

Weak — $3.73 per 1,000 gallons discharged per year in FY 2016.

Examples of establishments assigned to the weak user classification group 
include, but are not limited to the following: gardens/nurseries, libraries, retail 
stores, schools, churches, spas and health clubs, professional offices, and soft 
water processing. The weak strength category is based on an average 
wastewater strength for the group of 144 milligrams per liter of suspended 
solids, and 331 milligrams per liter of chemical oxygen demand.

Moderate — $4.26 per 1,000 gallons discharged per year in FY 2016. 

Examples of establishments assigned to the moderate user classification group 
include, but are not limited to the following: car washes, service stations, bars, 
dining and reception halls, hotels and motels without dining facilities, hospitals,
convalescent homes, mixed multi-tenant retail (unless a more specific rate 
applies), cold storage facilities, theaters, medical offices, and miscellaneous 
commercial and industrial. The moderate strength category is based on an 
average wastewater strength for the group of 199 milligrams per liter of 
suspended solids, and 536 milligrams per liter of chemical oxygen demand.

Strong — $7.90 per 1,000 gallons discharged per year in FY 2016. 

Examples of establishments assigned to the strong user classification group 
include, but are not limited to the following: auto steam cleaners, bakeries, 
restaurants, markets with a bakery or deli, mortuaries, bowling alleys with dining 
facilities. The strong strength category is based on an average wastewater
strength for the group of 489 milligrams per liter of suspended solids, and 1,839 
milligrams per liter of chemical oxygen demand.

(e) Industrial use as defined in Section 3 of Article II and uses that have wastewater 
sampled by the District shall be based on the total volume, chemical oxygen 
demand and suspended solids discharged to the District’s sewer system. The 
charges for these three components shall be calculated and added to arrive at 
the total sewer service charge.  The unit rates for each of the three components 
are provided below:

Volume — $2.37 per 1,000 gallons per year in FY 2016. 

Page 37 of 193Page 37 of 193



Chemical Oxygen Demand — $240.51 per 1,000 pounds per year in FY 2016. 

Suspended Solids — $440.95 per 1,000 pounds per year in FY 2016. 

SECTION 3.  ADJUSTMENTS

The Owner of any parcel subject to the scheduled charges set forth in Section 2 above 
may appeal to the Union Sanitary District staff if the charges imposed do not fairly 
reflect the quantity of discharge to the sanitary sewer for any period. Any appeal should 
be made within ninety (90) days of receiving the tax bill reflecting the charges imposed, 
which reflect actual water usage in the prior year. In most instances, the Union Sanitary 
District staff, Customer Service Coach and/or General Manager, will make any 
adjustment which is in order. Any such appeal can only relate to the quantity of water 
actually discharged to the sewer system and cannot relate to strength of discharge or 
category of discharger. The Union Sanitary District staff will have forty-five (45) days 
to act on any request for adjustment or the request will be deemed denied. After a 
decision on the adjustment request, the owner will have fifteen (15) days to appeal to 
the Board of Directors, in writing. The Board of Directors shall act on such appeal at a 
noticed hearing within sixty (60) days. The determination of an appeal by the Board of 
Directors of Union Sanitary District shall constitute a final determination of the District 
regarding any requested adjustment and shall be subject to judicial review pursuant to 
California Code of Civil Procedure section 1094.5. 

SECTION 4.  OPTIONAL SERVICES

(a) Segregation of Charges for Multi-tenant Parcels — Sewer service charges for 
parcels of land with multiple occupancies shall be determined by assigning the 
parcel into one of three strength categories, strong, moderate, or weak as 
defined by this ordinance. This determination shall be made by the District 
based on the quantity of flow from each strength category. The strength 
category which includes a majority of flow shall be the strength category 
assigned to the entire parcel.

(b) As an optional service, an Owner may request in writing that the District 
segregate the annual sewer service charges by considering the flow from each 
water meter on a property as a separate calculation. The flow from each water 
meter would be assigned into one of three strength categories (strong, 
moderate, or weak) or into one of the restaurant categories and calculated 
separately. The charge for each water meter shall be totaled and the entire 
amount billed to the parcel with the property tax bill. When the charges are 
segregated, a written breakdown of the District's strength assignments and 
calculations will be provided to the Owner by October first of each year. To 
request the start or stop of this optional service, an Owner or his, her or its 
authorized representative shall give written notice by June first for the upcoming 
fiscal year starting July first. Upon receipt of written request for this optional 
service, the District will continue to segregate the charges each year until it is 
given a written notice to discontinue the service.

Page 38 of 193Page 38 of 193



(c) In order to qualify for and receive this optional service, an Owner must provide 
documentation acceptable to the District (such as a site plan or plumbing plan) 
showing which water meters serve which tenants. Insufficient documentation, 
as determined by the District, will be grounds to deny this optional service to an 
Owner. 

(d) Owners who request this optional service shall pay an annual service charge, 
which shall be added to the total sewer service charges and collected with the 
property tax bill. Annual service charges shall be as follows:

$50.00 Per year per water meter, for the first year the service is started or re- 
          started; 

$25.00 Per year per water meter, for the second and succeeding years the
           service is provided. 

ARTICLE IV
BILLING AND COLLECTING

SECTION 1.  MAILING

Except as provided elsewhere in this ordinance, the District shall ascertain the amount 
of each sewer service charge applicable to each parcel in the District, and shall mail to 
the Owner thereof a bill for the first installment on or before November 1 of each year, 
and a bill for the second installment on or before the following February 1 of each year. 
Each bill so mailed shall contain a statement that a delinquency in payment for sixty 
(60) days shall constitute a lien against the parcel against which the charge is imposed, 
and that when recorded shall have the force, effect and priority of a judgment lien for 
three years unless sooner released or otherwise discharged.  Failure of the District to 
mail any such bill or failure of an Owner to receive any such bill shall not excuse an
Owner of any parcel from the obligation to pay any sewer service charge for any parcel 
he, she or it owns. 

SECTION 2.  DUE DATES OF CHARGES 

All sewer service charges shall become due and payable in the following installments.  
One-half thereof on November 1 of each year and one-half thereof on the following 
February 1 of each year.

SECTION 3.  DELINQUENCY DATES  

The first installment due on November 1 of each year is delinquent if not paid by 5:00 
P.M. on December 10 of each year.  The second installment due February 1 of each 
year is delinquent if not paid by 5:00 P.M. on the following April 10 of each year.

(a) Government and Other Non-Taxable Parcels.  For all government or public 
parcels or for any parcel which is not subject to property taxation or otherwise not on 

Page 39 of 193Page 39 of 193



the tax roll, the sewer service charge shall become due and payable on January 1 of 
each year and is delinquent if not paid by 5:00 P.M. on February 15 of each year.

SECTION 4.  PENALTIES FOR NON-PAYMENT, LIEN  

Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance for collection of sewer service charges
or by law for the collection of charges on the property tax roll, whenever a delinquency 
shall occur for non-payment, a penalty shall be paid in accordance with the 
requirements of the Alameda County Tax Collector. After delinquency for sixty (60) 
days, such unpaid charge and penalty shall constitute a lien upon the parcel of land 
against which the charge was levied.

SECTION 5.  COLLECTION OF CHARGES ON TAX ROLL  

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of Division 5, Part 3, Chapter 6, Article 4, of the 
Health and Safety Code of the State of California, and subject to the exceptions 
hereinafter set forth, the District hereby elects as an alternative procedure for 
the collection of sewer service charges prescribed or imposed by the provisions 
of this ordinance to have all such sewer service charges for each fiscal year 
commencing with fiscal year 1974–75, collected on the tax roll in the same 
manner, by the same persons, and at the same time as, and together with and 
not separately, from general taxes.

(b) The amount of the charges shall constitute a lien against the lot or parcel of land 
against which the charge has been imposed as of the date prescribed by law as 
the lien date for general property taxes. The Tax Collector of the County of 
Alameda shall include the amount of the charges on bills for taxes levied against 
the respective lots and parcels of land.

(c) Thereafter the amount of the charges shall be collected at the same time and in 
the same manner and by the same persons as, together with and not separately 
from, the general taxes for the District and shall be delinquent at the same time 
and thereafter be subject to the same delinquency penalties.

(d) All laws applicable to the levy, collection and enforcement of general taxes of 
the District, including, but not limited to, those pertaining to the matters of 
delinquency, correction, cancellation, refund and redemption, are applicable to 
such charges. The Tax Collector of Alameda County may, in his or her 
discretion, issue separate bills for such charges and separate receipts for 
collection on account of such charges. The County of Alameda shall be 
compensated for services rendered in connection with the levy, collection and 
enforcement of such charges in an amount to be fixed by agreement between 
the Board of Supervisors of Alameda County and the Board of Directors of the 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT.

Page 40 of 193Page 40 of 193



(e) The sewer service charges for any and all governmental or public parcels or for 
any parcel which is not subject to taxation or otherwise omitted from the tax roll 
shall be collected in accordance with other provisions of this ordinance.

SECTION 6.  TIMING OF SEWER SERVICE CHARGE CALCULATIONS

(a) The sewer service charge to be billed for the current fiscal year is calculated 
based on water use and pollutant strength records for the period March to 
February in the preceding fiscal year.

(b) An Owner of property served by Union Sanitary District is responsible for the 
payment of sewer service charges regardless of whether or not that Owner 
actually conducts any business or utilizes any services for wastewater disposal 
on the premises. The charges made herein are for the fiscal year beginning July 
1 and ending the following June 30.

(c) In the event a property receives a new connection from the Alameda County 
Water District after March of a given year, there will be no sewer service charge 
imposed until the following year, and the sewer service charge imposed will be 
calculated on the basis of water usage for the previous fiscal year.

SECTION 7.  RESPONSIBILITY TO PAY 

In the event of a sale or transfer of real property, the Owner of record when the annual 
sewer service charge bill is payable (one-half each on November 1 and February 1 of 
each year) is responsible for payment of charges. It is understood that the current 
Owner will be assessed sewer service charges based on flows as calculated in Section 
2 of Article III and Section 6 of Article IV. It shall be the responsibility of the prior and 
new Owners to account for the payment of upcoming sewer service charges in their 
real property transfer agreements. Notwithstanding such accounting, the Owner of 
record at the time the annual sewer service charge is payable is responsible for 
payment.

ARTICLE V
ENFORCEMENT

SECTION 1.  FAILURE TO PAY

In the event of the failure of any Owner to pay when due any sewer service charges, 
applicable to a parcel he, she or it owns, the District may enforce payment of such 
delinquent charges in any of the following manners:

(a) The District may have such parcel disconnected from the sanitary sewer 
system. In the event such disconnection should create a public hazard 
or nuisance, the District manager or the manager’s representatives may 
enter upon the parcel for the purpose of doing such things as may be 
reasonably necessary to alleviate or remove such hazard or menace. 

Page 41 of 193Page 41 of 193



The Owner of such parcel shall have a duty to reimburse the District for all 
expenses incurred by District in disconnecting any such parcel, or in doing other 
things authorized by this Section; and no reconnection shall be made until all 
charges due the District are paid.

(b) During the period of non-connection or disconnection, habitation of such parcel 
by human beings may constitute a public nuisance, whereupon the Board of 
Directors may cause proceedings to be brought for the abatement of the 
occupancy of said parcel by the human beings.  In such event, and as a 
condition of connection or reconnection, there shall be paid to the District 
reasonable attorney's fees and costs of suit arising in said action.

(c) The District may institute action in any court of competent jurisdiction to collect 
any charges, penalties and interest which may be due and payable in the same 
manner as any other debts owing to the District may be collected, in which event 
the District shall seek judgment for the costs of suit and reasonable attorney's 
fees.

(d) Any and all delinquent payments may be placed on the tax roll, and collected 
with property taxes, as provided in this ordinance.

(e) Such other action may be taken as may be authorized by law and the District 
Board.

SECTION 2. AUTHORITY

All powers authorized by this Article for the enforcement and collection of said sewer 
service charges, penalties and interest are cumulative and may be pursued 
alternatively or collectively as the District determines.

ARTICLE VI
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 1.  VACANCY

No credit, adjustment or refund will be made to any Owner because the structure or 
any portion thereof on a parcel is vacant or the wastewater facilities are not being 
utilized.

SECTION 2.  SEVERABILITY

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to 
be invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable; such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Board of Directors of the UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT hereby declares that it would have passed the provisions of this 

Page 42 of 193Page 42 of 193



ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof, 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses 
or phrases may be declared invalid, unconstitutional or unenforceable.

SECTION 3.  PUBLICATION AND MINUTE ENTRY

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force July 29, 2015, and at least one week 
prior to said date a summary of the changes shall be published in The Argus, a 
newspaper of general circulation published in the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
service area.  This ordinance shall be entered in the minutes of the District.

Passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT on 
this ___day of July 2015, by the following vote:

AYES:   ----

NOES:     ----

ABSENT:     ----

            ABSTAIN:  ----

       _____________________________
       President, Board of Directors
       UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

ATTEST:

___________________________
Secretary, Board of Directors
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Page 43 of 193Page 43 of 193



Directors
 Manny Fernandez 
 Tom Handley 
 Pat Kite
                                                                                                                Anjali Lathi 
 Jennifer Toy 

                                                                          Officers
 Paul R. Eldredge, P.E. 

General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

 David M. O'Hara 
Attorney

DATE: July 1, 2015 

MEMO TO:  Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Rich Cortes, Business Services Manager 
 Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 12 - Meeting of July 13, 2015 
Adopting Final Operating and Capacity Fund Budgets for Fiscal 
Year 2016

Recommendation

Adopt final Operating and Capacity Fund Budgets for FY 2016.  

Background 

Attached for your review are the final Operating and Capacity Fund budgets for FY 2016.  These 
budgets reflect the Board’s input and information presented at the Budget workshop on April 20th,
and the June 8th Board meeting. The Budget reflects: 

1) Increasing the sewer service charge by an average of 5.7%. 
2) Capacity fee of $5.596.66 per EDU; currently under review. 
3) Increasing the Net Operating Budget 2.9%. 

This document includes one change since the June 8th Board meeting: 

 Addition of $88,000 for Internal Revenue Code section 415(b) Replacement Benefit Plan 
estimate.

Attached are schedules supporting the budget, including brief comments. 

Attachments

Page 44 of 193Page 44 of 193



Union Sanitary District
Union City, California

Operating & CIP Budgets

FY 2016

Page 45 of 193Page 45 of 193



Union Sanitary District Operating & CIP Budget FY 2016

Table of Contents 

Budget Message …….………..…………………………. 1

Summary & Comments………..………………….…… 5

Net Operating Budget by Work Group……….……

Special Projects………….…………………..…………… 1

Retiree Medical Fund……………… .…………….…… 1

R&R – Vehicle & Equipment……….………….……… 1

R&R – Information Systems…..………..…….……… 1

R&R – Plant & Pump Stations……………….….…… 1

Emergency Fund……………………………….….……… 1

R&R - Structural ……………………………….………… 1

Pretreatment Fund…………………………….………… 1

Capacity Fund…..……………………………….………… 1

Annual Items over $100K……..………………….…… 1

Cash Flow & Fund Balances……….………………… 1

Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan……….……... 1

Ten-Year Cash Flow Projection……….……….……. 2

Page 46 of 193Page 46 of 193



1 | P a g e

July 13, 2015

To: USD Board of Directors

From: Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager

Subject: Fiscal Year 2016 Budget

Union Sanitary District staff is pleased to present to the Board of Directors, the annual budget for
Fiscal Year 2016, covering the period from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016. The budget continues
to focus on operation and maintenance of the District’s infrastructure assets, capital project
construction, planning, and effective use of technology.

Outstanding Performance and Cost Effective Service for the District’s Customers
In keeping with the District’s Mission, USD continues to provide a high level of award winning
service to the District’s customers at a very reasonable cost. USD has maintained the District’s
rates well below the target level of the lower 33rd percentile. In fact, the District’s existing Sewer
Service Charge rate of $357 per year for a single family residence is in the lower 15th percentile
of the 27 agencies we survey annually. On a monthly basis, at just under $29.75, we are by far
the least expensive household utility.

We continue the District’s record of outstanding stewardship and service. We have been recently
informed that USD has won the Platinum Award from the National Association of Clean Water
Agencies for Peak Performance, operating for 6 consecutive years without exceeding any of the
limits or conditions of the District’s permit. This is a tribute to the outstanding work by the
District Operations and Maintenance teams. We continue to average less than one spill per
hundred miles of pipeline per year, amongst the best in the State. The District Collections
Services and Environmental Compliance groups have successfully implemented measures to
control roots and grease to help minimize spills and back ups. We are responding to over 97.5%
of all customer call outs within one hour, up from 96% the previous year. The District quality
performance is also reflected in awards we have received for the District procurement program
and financial reporting.

Page 47 of 193Page 47 of 193



2 | P a g e

Financial State of the District
The recovery of the local economy in the time following the end of the recession has been slow,
but is showing modest signs of improvement. In the last year, USD has seen an increase in the
number of permit applications, indicating new growth. The positive indicators in the economy
are encouraging, however, the District must remain vigilant in its efforts to contain expenses.
Similar to other agencies, the District faces significant cost increase pressures due to health care
and pensions as well as utilities and capital expenditures.

The District’s revenues have continued to increase, allowing for an ongoing annual contribution
to the District’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP). The District’s aggressive program has
resulted in a slight reduction of reserves over the years with an expected contribution in FY 16.
The District’s infrastructure is in good condition with reduced risk of failure. We have also been
able to make contributions to the District emergency reserve for mitigation of the inevitable
impacts of seismic activity in the Bay Area or other natural disasters.

The District’s strong planning and asset management efforts ensure that we have a good
understanding of the condition of the District assets and that we schedule projects in a timely
manner to evaluate, and if necessary, rehabilitate or replace aging infrastructure. The District’s
Capital Improvement Program includes approximately $190 million in projects over the next 10
years to ensure continued reliable operation of the District pipelines, pump stations and
treatment plant. In addition, USD is continuing to implement elements of the District Information
Technology Master Plan, including Data Management Systems for construction project
management and Plant operation’s information. We are also evaluating the expanded use of
remote data access. These improvements will allow us to continue to improve the efficiency of
the District’s business.

Revenues
Although the District continues to see recovery in the local economy, the extended drought is
having an impact on the District’s revenues from non residential customers. We are also seeing
a modest increase in building permit applications and new development construction. With
approximately 50% of the District’s revenue based on residential customers, USD’s income
remains relatively stable despite volatility in non residential revenues.

Expenditures
Total expenditures for the coming fiscal year are projected to increase by 3.0%. This reflects
savings due to deferment of several CIP projects, reductions in operating expenses, and savings
associated with both solar and cogeneration projects. Chemical cost increases have been
relatively stable due to the District’s participation in the Bay Area Chemical Consortium.

No significant changes are being proposed during this fiscal year to the number of District
employees. Vacancies, mostly attributable to retirements, are being carefully evaluated prior to
being backfilled. The District is experiencing a significant amount of turnover due to these
retirements, which is not unique to the District. Many other agencies are experiencing the same

Page 48 of 193Page 48 of 193



3 | P a g e

phenomenon. Balancing the District’s ability to attract and retain a qualified workforce against
the bottom line will continue to be a challenge.

The Capital Improvement Program will be decreasing slightly from last year. In the 10 year plan,
new projects have been added for wet weather flow management, pipeline rehabilitation, and
replacement, and lift station improvements. The Information System R&R will be continuing to
fund new projects from the IT Master Plan, including a major upgrade to the SCADA System, a
GIS upgrade, and replacement of the telephone communications system.

The Special Projects Fund (formerly Non ECB) expenditures will decrease slightly from the
previous FY, $1.7 million in FY15 versus $1.5 million in FY16. Studies planned for this year include
the plant solids system master plan, evaluation of CS preventative maintenance master plan,
Alvarado Basin master plan update, and a Water Recycling Feasibility study. Other expenditures
include the Old Alameda Creek permit renewal, Hayward Marsh permit renewal, and expanded
outreach programs (USD newsletter and FOG brochure).

Capital Program and Project Financing
Capital project spending will continue to focus on the Wastewater Treatment Plant as well as
pipeline rehabilitation. As many of the District buildings and treatment processes approach 35
years of operation, we will be replacing and upgrading them to ensure long term and efficient
operation of the plant. FY15 saw the completion of the Cogeneration project, Newark Backyard
Project Phases I and II, and Digester #5 rehabilitation to name a few. New projects for FY16
include, but are not limited to the continued work on the Thickener building project, the new
FMC building, Alvarado – Niles sewer line rehab, and the Newark Backyard Rehab Phase III.

USD continues to take advantage of the availability of low interest loans through the State and
Federally funded State Revolving Fund (SRF) program.

Challenges for FY16
The most significant issues facing the District in the coming fiscal year will likely be management
transition, workload management, and wet weather flow management. Key staff will be retiring,
or transitioning to retirement during this fiscal year. Transferring critical knowledge, providing
appropriate training, and maintaining the District focus on the Mission of the District will be key
elements to a smooth transition. Workload management will bring many challenges associated
with implementing an ambitious Capital Improvement Program. Many new staff members, as
well as managers, will be coming up to speed this year while the District workload remains
constant. Wet weather flow issues remain a critical component and identifying options and
developing contingency plans for handling future peak flows.

Balanced Budget, Reserves and Rates
USD has been operating with a balanced budget and anticipates continuing to do so. In some
years, USD takes money from reserves for capital projects, and in some years funds are added to
the District reserves. For FY16 we anticipate adding close to $4.3 million to reserves. The District
reserves continue to be stable, although as the District operating budget increases, more of the

Page 49 of 193Page 49 of 193



4 | P a g e

District reserves are dedicated to ensuring operating cash flow for the 8 month period in which
we receive very limited Sewer Service Charge revenues. The District’s projected fund balances
indicate renewal and replacement fund reserves will remain positive with the implementation of
the proposed rate increases for FY16 and beyond.

Conclusion
USD continues to perform as one of the most outstanding wastewater agencies in the State of
California. The District’s high level of service and reasonable rates reflect a highly efficient and
customer oriented staff that has created a positive culture and earned USD an excellent
reputation in the wastewater industry. District employees are the hallmark of the District’s
organization and are responsible for our success in being a highly responsive, non bureaucratic
public agency that can boast award winning service, well maintained infrastructure, and a safe
and productive work environment.

Page 50 of 193Page 50 of 193



SUMMARY & COMMENTS
FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET

This summary and comments section addresses the proposed budget and rates for Fiscal Year 
2016.

10-YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN

Rates:  Increase by 5.7% the existing Sewer Service Charge for Single Family Dwelling (SFD)
to $377.  Increase to $326.00 the Multi-family Dwelling (MFD) rate.  Sewer Service Charge 
ordinance rates will increase by 5.7% on average in 2016.  A Proposition 218 notice to reflect an 
increase for FY14-FY16 of 5.7% each year was mailed to property owners in April 2013. 
Increases are projected for the following several years, but will be reviewed and analyzed 
annually.

PERS retirement investment losses from 2008-2009 have adversely impacted employer rates. 
Rates are expected to increase in the next five years, due to assumption changes and prior year 
losses.  Projected rates for FY 2016 and FY 2017 are 18.56% and 20.3%, respectively.  The 
employee paid portion of the employer rate will increase as well, slightly offsetting the employer 
rate. 

Capacity fees are currently under review.  The current rate is $5,595.66 per EDU. The fees will 
be brought back for the Board’s consideration later this summer.

Financing:  The District will fund capital projects by a combination of pay-as-you-go and debt 
financing (State Revolving Fund Loans).

Budget Summary for FY 2016

FY 2015
(Projected)

FY 2016
(Budget) % Change

Total District 
Revenues & Proceeds

Sewer Service Charge $48,385,649 $48,430,260 0.1
Capacity Fees 4,200,000 4,372,000 4.1
Interest 335,000 345,000 2.9
Other Fees 1,562,004 1,373,000 -12.1
SGIP Rebates 1,690,000 200,000 -88.2
SRF Loan Proceeds 4,099,480 5,500,000 34.1

Total Revenues & Proceeds $60,272,133 $60,220,260 -0.1
Total District Expenses

Operating $31,951,111 $33, 7,303 5.
Capital Projects 15,327,000 15,076,000 -1.6
Debt Servicing 3,127,110 3,127,110 0.0
Special Projects 1,149,267 1,522,970 32.5
Sub-Funds 2,613,002 2,239,405 -14.3
County Processing Fee 105,559 106,000 0.4

Total Expenses $54,273,049 $55,8 ,788 .

5
Page 51 of 193Page 51 of 193



SEWER SERVICE FUND FY 2016 Revenues & Proceeds:  $54,243,260

Revenue and Transfers:

• The principal revenue for the Operating Fund is from the annual sewer service charges,
estimated to be $48.4 million in FY 2016. Revenues are expected to decline in FY 2016
between $1,223,991 and $3,000,740 due to lower water usage for non-residential
customers.  Non-residential customers’ rates are calculated annually using flow and sewage
strength per the rate study.  This analysis is ongoing and should be finalized by mid-July.
For the purposes of this draft budget, the amount of $3,000,740 is being conservatively
utilized as a worst-case scenario.

• Interest and other income ($1.7 million) includes $215,000 in interest, $1,080,000 in
Operating revenue from the City of Fremont Urban Runoff program, East Bay Dischargers
Authority (EBDA) revenue, inspection/plan check fees; $76,000 from Livermore Amador
Valley Water Management Agency (LAVWMA), $174,000 from PG&E in carport and
Irvington solar panel rebates (until 2017), and $43,000 from the sale of surplus equipment.
The District is expected to receive $100,000 in SGIP rebates from the Cogeneration project.

• The District is anticipating total receipts of $4,125,000 in SRF loan proceeds for the
Thickener project for the sewer service charge fund in FY 2016.

SEWER SERVICE FUND FY 2016 Expense: $50, ,067

Each component of the Sewer Service Fund expense is described below:

• Operating Budget: FY 2016 Expense: $33, 0

The Operating Fund contains expenditures required for the day-to-day operation of the 
District, including maintenance, regulatory activities, engineering, and administration.  The 
net Operating budget will increase 2.67% in FY 2016. Since the May, 2015 Budget 
Workshop, the Operating expense budget has been reduced by $353,938.

Special Projects FY 2016 Expense:  $1,522,970

This fund includes non-routine expenses such as one-time studies, hiring of consultants, 
and new programs where the long-term financial impact, if any, is not known.  Major FY 
2016 expenses by categories include: Administrative and Regulatory projects, $564,538; 
Hayward Marsh projects, $74,500; Studies and other projects, $883,932. Since the May, 
2015 Budget Workshop, the Special Projects Budget has been reduced by $250,000.  A
detailed listing of Special Projects is included in this document.

Retiree Medical Benefits FY 2016 Expense:  $561,205 

The District began to transfer Retiree Assets to the CalPERS trust (CERBT) in FY 2009.
For FY 2016, the annual required contribution (ARC) based on the recently completed
7/1/13 actuarial study will be $561,205. A new study (biennial) is required by CalPERS for
FY 2016.

6
Page 52 of 193Page 52 of 193



Renewal & Replacement - Vehicle and Equipment FY 2016 Expense:  $379,500

Vehicles and equipment that are scheduled to be replaced due to age or obsolescence are
purchased through this fund.  The provision is based on a 10-year replacement schedule
and expense projection.  Major expenses include two dump bed pickup trucks, a service
response truck, three electric carts, 1 forklift, and other equipment. The provision is
$620,000 for FY 2016.

Renewal & Replacement - Information System FY 2016 Expense:  $1,036,700

This fund replaces major information systems hardware and software. The provision is
$800,000 for FY 2016. Major projects include SCADA upgrade, Operations Data
Management System, Collection System GIS Upgrade, and Records Management, and
Mobile Projects, and Share Point Upgrade. IT/PBX and Security Replacements will be
approximately, $469,700, as described in the IT Master Plan of 2011.

Renewal & Replacement – Plant & Pump Station FY 2016 Expense:  $250,000

This fund is for the purchase of Plant equipment that is scheduled to be replaced due to age
or obsolescence, as well as unplanned replacement costs.  The provision for FY 2016 is
$203,000 and expenses include overhauling degritters, a gravity belt press, purchasing a
spare mixing pump, rehabilitating a forklift, two paint shop compressors, and two positive
displacement pumps.

Emergency Fund FY 2016 Expense:  $0

The District established the Emergency Fund in FY 2008.  The purpose of this fund is to
mitigate the financial impact of an emergency or catastrophic event.  The provision for FY
2016 will be $750,000.

Structural Renewal and Replacement FY 2016 Expense: $12,757,389

The proposed Capital Improvement Program projects of $10,553,000 for FY 2016 are
included in this fund.  In addition, the fund will pay SRF loan payments of $681,000 for the
Irvington Equalization Storage Facility project, $108,000 for the Willow/Central Ave. project,
$343,000 for Newark Pump Station, $140,000 for the Lower Hetch Hetchy project, $127,000
for the Cedar Blvd project, $157,000 for the Substation 1 project, $444,000 for the Primary
Clarifier project, and $206,000 for the Boyce Road project.  The provision will be
approximately $17,000,000. A detailed CIP schedule is included with this document.

Pretreatment Fund            FY 2016 Expense:  $12,000

Expenses are for supplies, equipment and training that support the Pretreatment Program
and Ordinance No. 36.  There is no sewer service charge provision for this fund.

Miscellaneous Expense         FY 2016 Expense:  $106,000

The District pays Alameda County an annual fee for administration and sewer service
charge collection through the tax rolls, based on the number of parcels.

7
Page 53 of 193Page 53 of 193



SEWER SERVICE FUND RESERVES

Approximately $3, ,193 will be transferred to reserves for funding of the FY 2016
Operating Fund, Renewal and Replacement funds, Capital Improvement Program, and
related debt servicing.

CAPACITY FUND  FY 2016 Revenues & Proceeds: $5,977,000

Revenues for FY 2016 include capacity fees of $4,372,000, and interest income of
$130,000.  The Capacity fund will be financed by a Capacity Fee of $5,595.66 per
equivalent dwelling unit.

The Capacity fund is scheduled to receive SRF loan proceeds for the Thickener project in
the amount of $1,375,500.

The Capacity fund is expected to receive $100,000 in SGIP rebates for the Cogeneration
project.

CAPACITY FUND FY 2016 Expense:   $5,445,721

The expenditures for FY 2016 include $4,523,000 for the Capacity-related portion of the
Capital Improvement Program.

The Capacity fund will pay debt servicing of $227,000 for the Capacity portion of the
Irvington Equalization Storage Facilities project SRF loan and $343,000 for the Capacity
portion of the Newark Pump Station SRF loan, $147,000 for Primary Clarifier, and $206,000
for Boyce Road, for a total of $923,000.

CAPACITY FUND RESERVES

Approximately $531,279 will be added to Capacity Fund reserves in FY 2016.

8
Page 54 of 193Page 54 of 193



      Amount to Reserves
$4, ,472

Sewer Service Charges
80.4%

Capacity Fees
7.3%

Interest Income
0.6%

Operating Revenues
1.8%

SRF Loan Proceeds
9.1%

Misc. Income
0.8%

FY '16 Total Revenues & Proceeds
$60,220,260 

Operating
60.5%

Capital Improvement 
Program
27.0%

Debt Service
5.6%

SPEC
PROJ/ISRR/VHEQ/
RMED/PPSR/PTRM 

6.7%

County Fee
0.2%

FY '16 Total
Expenditures
$55,8 ,788

9
Page 55 of 193Page 55 of 193



N
ET

 O
PE

R
A

TI
N

G
 B

U
D

G
ET

FY
 '1

5
FY

 '1
5

FY
 '1

6
W

or
k 

G
ro

up
B

ud
ge

t
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
op

os
ed

D
is

tr
ic

t B
oa

rd
$1

70
,9

00
$1

70
,9

00
$1

76
,4

81
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
/A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
1,

04
8,

00
0

1,
03

0,
79

5
95

3,
13

9
B

us
in

es
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

4,
66

4,
10

5
4,

65
1,

97
7

5,
1

,6
12

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

5,
90

6,
99

8
5,

84
1,

51
7

6,
01

1,
20

2
Te

ch
ni

ca
l S

er
vi

ce
s

4,
64

1,
30

7
4,

17
8,

12
5

4,
54

8,
32

3
Tr

ea
tm

en
t &

 D
is

po
sa

l S
er

vi
ce

s
9,

79
8,

64
0

9,
60

0,
39

3
9,

99
7,

30
4

Fa
br

ic
at

io
n,

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 &
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

5,
58

0,
79

4
5,

35
7,

25
5

5,
86

1,
24

2

To
ta

l O
PE

R
AT

IN
G

$3
1,

81
0,

74
4

$3
0,

83
0,

96
2

$3
2,

,3
03

Pe
rc

en
t o

f F
Y 

'1
5 

B
ud

ge
t

96
.9

%

Pe
rc

en
t c

ha
ng

e 
fr

om
 F

Y 
'1

5 
B

ud
ge

t
2.

%

10
P

ag
e 

56
 o

f 1
93

P
ag

e 
56

 o
f 1

93



  SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND   FY '15 - FY '16

PROPOSED
DESCRIPTION BUDGET PROJECTION ESTIMATED New $ BUDGET

FY '15 FY '15 CARRYOVER FY '16

Administrative & Regulatory
GIS JPA 38,000 30,400 7,600 14,400 22,000
New Public Outreach Programs 25,000 40,000 (15,000) 70,000 70,000
Professional Recruitment Services 65,000 50,000 15,000 10,000 25,000
Public Information Program (includes USD Newsletter) 44,000 44,000 0 165,000 165,000
Election Costs 0 0 0 282,538 282,538
Sub-Total Admin & Regulatory 172,000 164,400 7,600 541,938 564,538

Studies & Other
Admin & Field Services Building Leak Investigation 48,000 42,000 6,000 0 0
Alvarado Basin Master Plan/PACP Update 0 0 0 50,000 50,000
Alvarado Sub-Surface Investigation (was Plant Groundwater Well 15,722 8,200 7,522 2,500 10,000
Anitamox Sidestream Treatment Pilot 15,000 18,574 (3,574) 0 0
Corrosion Control & Pretreatment Chemical Study 100,000 0 100,000 0 0
Effluent Flow Management Study 46,719 0 46,719 0 0
Evaluation of CS Preventive Maintenance Program 50,000 10,000 40,000 40,000 80,000
Financial Master Plan 0 0 0 50,000 50,000
Fremont Mid-Town Capacity Assessment 6,862 1,664 5,198 0 0
Hazardous Materials Program 50,000 49,700 300 0 0
Irvington Basin Master Plan Update 200,000 200,000 0 0 0
Lateral Pilot Program - Condition Assessment 95,650 3,000 65,932 0 65,932
Local Limits and Wastewater Treatability (Ammonia) 5,000 5,000 0 0 0
NPDES Permit Renewal - Old Alameda Creek 75,000 39,000 36,000 2,000 38,000
NPDES Permit Support Services 0 0 0 10,000 10,000
Odor Control System Evaluation 100,000 100,000 0 0 0
Plant Master Plan Update 0 0 0 50,000 50,000
Plant Paving Condition Assessment 0 0 0 50,000 50,000
Plant Solids System/Capacity Master plan 0 0 0 200,000 200,000
Plant-wide Lighting Study 50,000 50,000 0 0 0
Pump Station Master Plan 150,000 150,000 0 25,000 25,000
Regional Biosolids Facility 0 0 0 15,000 15,000
Seismic Evaluation 50,000 50,000 0 0 0
Sewer Service Charge Cost of Service Study 26,615 52,653 (26,038) 10,000 10,000
Standard Specs Update 0 0 0 50,000 50,000
Vehicle Storage Bird Netting and Light Replacement 67,500 57,687 9,813 0 0
Water Recycling & Conservation Program (Funded by CPTY) 220,000 7,000 213,000 0 180,000
Sub-Total Studies & Other 1,372,068 844,478 500,872 554,500 883,932

Hayward Marsh
NPDES Permit Annual Fee 2,100 2,000 100 1,900 2,000
NPDES Permit Support Services 5,000 0 5,000 32,500 37,500
Permit Amendment to Delay Mixing Study 13,100 0 13,100 0 0
Regional Monitoring Plan (RMP) Annual Fee 16,210 17,389 (1,179) 18,000 18,000
Rehabilitation Study 128,000 121,000 7,000 10,000 17,000
Sub-Total Hayward Marsh 164,410 140,389 24,021 62,400 74,500

Total Special Projects Fund 1,708,478 1,149,267 532,493 1,158,838 1,522,970
67.3% 89.1%

11
Page 57 of 193Page 57 of 193



Estimated Projected
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

SPECIAL PROJECTS - Fund 30
 Beginning Balance $134,820 $384,348 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revenue

 Provisions from SSC 1,398,795 1,138,622 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000

Expenditures

 Studies and Projects 1,149,267 1,522,970 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000

 Estimated Carryover $384,348 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 PROJECTS PLANNED FOR FY '16

 Project Category Amount

 Administrative & Regulatory $564,538
 Studies & Other 883,932
 Hayward Marsh 74,500

Total $1,522,970

Estimated Projected
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

RETIREE MEDICAL - Fund 40
 Beginning Balance $4,468 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revenue

 Provisions from SSC 543,540 561,205 579,444 598,276 617,720 637,796
 for ARC*

Expenditures

 Medical Expenses (398,224) (432,737) (466,174) (501,989) (536,886) (571,293)
  Medical Reimbursement 398,224 432,737 466,174 501,989 536,886 571,293
Transfers out:
 Annual Required
 Contribution (ARC) 548,008 561,205 579,444 598,276 617,720 637,796

 Ending Balance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

* From actuarial valuation completed in FY'14

12
Page 58 of 193Page 58 of 193



Estimated Projected
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT - Fund 50
 Beginning Balance $956,195 $648,865 $932,365 $363,365 $673,365 $759,365

Revenue

 Provisions from SSC 589,900 620,000 645,000 670,000 690,000 711,000
 Sale of surplus 45,000 43,000 39,000 18,000 26,000 57,000

Expenditures
 Vehicles and Equipment 942,230 379,500 1,253,000 378,000 630,000 960,000

 Ending Balance $648,865 $932,365 $363,365 $673,365 $759,365 $567,365

 REPLACEMENTS SCHEDULED FOR FY '16
Vehicles Equipment

QTY Type Repl. Cost QTY Type Repl. Cost
2 Dump Bed Pickups $114,000 3 Electric Carts $55,500
1 Service Response 56,000 1 Forklift 52,000

Truck 2 Trailer Mounted Steam Cleaner 46,000
1 Saw Trailer 25,000
1 Pressure Washer 12,000
2 3-Inch Pumps 9,000
1 3,600 Watt Portable Generatot 3,000

Chair Budget 7,000

Total for Vehicles $170,000 Total for Equipment $209,500
TOTAL VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT FY '16 BUDGET $379,500

Estimated Projected
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM - Fund 60
 Beginning Balance $1,399,153 $1,391,421 $1,154,721 $811,921 $765,421 $835,321

Revenue
 Provisions from SSC 800,000 800,000 800,000 800,000 800,000 700,000

Expenditures
 IT/PBX/Security 281,000 469,700 339,800 211,500 330,100 321,300
 Replacements
 IT Master Plan Projects 526,732 567,000 803,000 635,000 400,000 400,000

 Ending Balance $1,391,421 $1,154,721 $811,921 $765,421 $835,321 $814,021

 SYSTEM UPGRADES & REPLACEMENTS SCHEDULED FOR FY '16

 Project / System Amount

 SCADA Upgrade $150,000
 Operations Data Management System 137,000
 Collection System GIS Upgrade 120,000
 Records Management 50,000
 Mobile Projects 40,000
 Share Point Upgrade 2013 40,000
 Network Design Remote Site Data Lines 30,000
 IT/PBX/Security Replacements 469,700

Total $1,036,700

13
Page 59 of 193Page 59 of 193



Estimated Projected
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT PLANT AND PUMP STATION - Fund 70
 Beginning Balance ($647) $47,353 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revenue
 Provisions from SSC 250,000 202,647 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000

Expenditures
 Plant and Pump Station Equipment 202,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
 Unplanned expenditures 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
 Charged to Operating if exceeds Budget

 Ending Balance $47,353 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

REPLACEMENTS SCHEDULED FOR FY 2016

 It is anticipated that the Plant & Pump Station Renewal &
Overhaul 2 Degritters $50,000  Replacement fund will be incorporated with or replaced by 
Overhaul 1 Gravity Belt Press 50,000  an asset management program in the future.
Purchase Spare Mixing Pump 40,000
R&R Forklift 35,000
R&R 2 Paint Shop Compressors 30,000
R&R 2 Positive Displacement Pumps 22,000

Subtotal Planned Projects: $227,000

Unplanned Maintenance $23,000

Total for FY 2016 $250,000
TOTAL PLANT AND PUMPSTATION R&R  FY '16 BUDGET

Estimated Projected
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

EMERGENCY - Fund 75
 Beginning Balance $2,750,000 $3,500,000 $4,250,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

Revenue
 Provisions from SSC 750,000 750,000 750,000 0 0 0

Expenditures
 Supplies/Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Ending Balance $3,500,000 $4,250,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

14
Page 60 of 193Page 60 of 193



Estimated Projected
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

STRUCTURAL RENEWAL & REPLACEMENT - Fund 80
 Beginning Balance ($9,562,970) ($63,872) $8,578,239 $5,978,850 $5,511,100 $6,878,350

Revenue
 Provisions from SSC 19,843,659 17,000,000 16,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
 SRF Proceeds 3,074,480 4,125,000 0 0 0 0
 SGIP Proceeds 845,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
 Solar Rebates 180,348 174,000 65,000 0 0 0

Expenditures
 CIP Projects 12,240,000 10,552,500 16,560,000 18,799,200 15,964,200 16,470,000
 Debt Service (SRF Repayments) 2,204,389 2,204,389 2,204,389 1,768,550 2,768,550 2,768,550

 Ending Balance ($63,872) $8,578,239 $5,978,850 $5,511,100 $6,878,350 $7,739,800

Estimated Projected
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

PRETREATMENT - Fund 85
 Beginning Balance $119,783 $108,483 $101,483 $94,483 $87,483 $80,483

Revenue
 Transfer from SSC 0 0 0 0 0 0
 Enforcement Fees 6,200 0 0 0 0 0
 Safety Kleen Reimbursement 100,000 0 0 0 0 0

Expenses
 Supplies/Equipment 17,500 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
 Training 0 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
 Safety Kleen 100,000 0 0 0 0 0

 Ending Balance $108,483 $101,483 $94,483 $87,483 $80,483 $73,483

15
Page 61 of 193Page 61 of 193



Estimated Projected
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

CAPACITY - Fund 90
 Beginning Balance $14,165,399 $16,350,399 $16,881,899 $14,720,899 $11,817,199 $8,401,499

Revenue
 Capacity Fees 4,200,000 4,372,000 2,800,000 2,800,000 2,800,000 2,800,000
 SRF Proceeds 1,025,000 1,375,000 125,000 0 0 0
 SGIP Proceeds (Cogen) 845,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
 Interest 125,000 130,000 102,000 89,000 72,000 51,000

Expenditures
 CIP 3,087,000 4,522,500 4,365,000 4,781,700 5,276,700 3,285,000
 Debt Servicing 923,000 923,000 923,000 1,111,000 1,111,000 1,111,000

 Ending Balance $16,350,399 $16,881,899 $14,720,899 $11,817,199 $8,401,499 $6,956,499

16
Page 62 of 193Page 62 of 193



 Annual Contract Purchases of Supplies, Services & Vehicle Renewal 
Replacements Over $100,000

for Fiscal Year 2016

ITEMS

Estimated  
Expenditure

Supplies*:
Ferrous Chloride, One-Year contract with Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. $400,000
Sodium Hypochlorite - One-year contract with Univar USA, Inc. 395,000
Polymer, emulsion, One-Year Contract with successful bidder 352,000
Hydrogen Peroxide, One-Year Contract with Siemens, Inc. 336,000
Polymer, mannich, One-Year Contract with successful bidder 145,000

Total Supplies: $1,628,000

Services:
State Water Resources Control Board, Debt payments for eight SRF loans $3,127,110
PERS Medical - payments for employee coverage 3,099,141
PERS Retirement payments for employees 2,997,078
PG&E, payments for electrical service - Alvarado site 1,450,000
EBDA Operations & Maintenance payments 1,303,841
Biosolids, Year Four of Five-Year Contract with Synagro & successful bidder 756,879
PERS Retiree Medical Trust payments (ARC) 561,205
PG&E, payments for electrical service - Newark Pump Station 197,258

Total Services: $13,492,512

Vehicle & Equipment Renewal/Replacement:

Dump Bed Pickup Trucks $114,000

Total Vehicle & Equipment Renewal/Replacement $114,000

17
Page 63 of 193Page 63 of 193



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW AND FUND BALANCES
FY '15 FY '15 FY '16
Budget Projected Proposed

OPERATING FUND
Beginning Balance $31,569,000 $31,569,000 $35,382,805

Revenues and Proceeds:
     Sewer Service Charges $47,448,461 $48,385,649 $48,430,260
     Operating Revenues 848,500 1,120,149 1,080,000
     Interest Income 210,000 210,000 215,000
     SGIP Rebates (Cogen) 845,000 845,000 100,000
     Solar Rebates (Irvington & Carport) 189,200 180,348 174,000
     SRF Loan Proceeds 2,542,000 3,074,480 4,125,000
     Misc. (LAVWMA, enforce fees, surplus items) 115,000 261,507 119,000

Total Revenues and Proceeds $52,198,161 $54,077,133 $54,243,260
Expenditures:
     Operating $32,659,214 $31,951,111 $33, ,303
     Special Projects 1,708,478 1,149,267 1,522,970
     Retiree Medical Benefits (ARC) 543,540 543,540 561,205
     R & R - Vehicles & Equipment 1,057,700 942,230 379,500
     R & R - Information System 1,216,000 807,732 1,036,700
     R & R - Plant & Pump Stations 250,000 202,000 250,000
     Pretreatment Program 7,000 117,500 12,000
     Sewer Service Fee from County 106,000 105,559 106,000
     Debt Servicing 2,204,389 2,204,389 2,204,389
     Capital Program - R & R Structural* 11,632,500 12,240,000 10,553,000

Total Expenditures $51,384,821 $50,263,328 $50, ,067
Ending Sewer Service Fund Balance $32,382,340 $35,382,805 $39, ,998

CAPACITY FUND
Beginning Balance $14,165,000 $14,165,000 $16,350,279

Revenues:
     Capacity Fees $2,700,000 $4,200,000 $4,372,000
     Interest Income 89,000 125,000 130,000
     SGIP Rebates (Cogen) 845,000 845,000 100,000
     SRF Loan Proceeds 848,000 1,025,000 1,375,000

Total Revenues $4,482,000 $6,195,000 $5,977,000
Expenditures:
     Capital Program* $3,240,000 $3,087,000 $4,523,000
     Debt Servicing - SRF 923,000 922,721 922,721

Total Expenditures $4,163,000 $4,009,721 $5,445,721
Ending Capacity Fund Balance $14,484,000 $16,350,279 $16,881,558

*CIP Budgeted at 90%

18
Page 64 of 193Page 64 of 193



AA
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

FF
u

n
d

%%
RR

an
k

PP
ro

je
ct

N
am

e
FF

Y
16

FF
Y

17
FF

Y
18

FF
Y

19
FF

Y
20

FF
Y

21
FF

Y
22

FF
Y

23
FF

Y
24

FF
Y

25
TT

o
ta

l

80
0

1
A

dm
in

/F
ie

ld
O

ps
B

ld
g.

S
es

m
ic

U
pg

ra
de

an
10

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
22,

10
0

90
0

1
A

dm
in

/F
ie

ld
O

ps
B

ld
g.

S
es

m
ic

U
pg

ra
de

an
d

Le
ak

R
ep

ai
rs

00

80
0

3
A

dd
iti

on
al

C
S

(V
eh

ic
le

)
S

to
ra

ge
25

0
2 25

0

80
0

2
F

M
C

B
ld

g.
-

N
ew

20
0

3,
70

0
3,

90
0

77,
80

0
90

0
2

F
M

C
B

ld
g.

-
N

ew
00

80
0

2
F

M
C

B
ld

gs
R

en
ov

at
io

n
10

0
30

0
440

0
90

0
2

F
M

C
B

ld
gs

R
en

ov
at

io
n

00

80
0

3
F

M
C

S
to

ra
ge

25
0

225
0

80
0

3
P

la
nt

P
av

in
g

20
0

25
0

445
0

90
0

3
S

ol
ar

P
an

el
s

at
A

lv
ar

ad
o

-
P

ha
se

II
15

0
1,

50
0

11,
65

0

TT
o

ta
lf

o
r

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

30
0

5,
55

0
6,

50
0

30
0

0
25

0
0

0
0

0
12

,9
00

CC
O

L
L

E
C

T
IO

N
S

Y
S

T
E

M
FF

u
n

d
%%

RR
an

k
PP

ro
je

ct
N

am
e

FF
Y

16
FF

Y
17

FF
Y

18
FF

Y
19

FF
Y

20
FF

Y
21

FF
Y

22
FF

Y
23

FF
Y

24
FF

Y
25

TT
o

ta
l

80
0

1
A

lv
ar

ad
o-

N
ile

s
S

ew
er

R
eh

ab
1,

00
0

3,
00

0
44,

00
0

90
0

1
A

lv
ar

ad
o-

N
ile

s
S

ew
er

R
eh

ab
00

80
0

2
C

as
tI

ro
n/

P
ip

e
Li

ni
ng

50
0

50
0

50
0

50
0

50
0

22,
50

0
90

0
2

C
as

tI
ro

n/
P

ip
e

Li
ni

ng
00

80
0

2
M

is
c.

C
S

P
ro

je
ct

s
25

0
25

0
30

0
30

0
30

0
30

0
30

0
30

0
30

0
22,

60
0

80
0

2
R

C
P

S
ew

er
R

eh
ab

(A
lv

ar
ad

o
B

as
in

)
20

0
2,

00
0

10
0

1,
00

0
33,

30
0

90
0

2
R

C
P

S
ew

er
R

eh
ab

(A
lv

ar
ad

o
B

as
in

)
00

80
0

2
R

C
P

S
ew

er
R

eh
ab

(I
rv

in
gt

on
B

as
in

)
20

0
2,

00
0

30
0

3,
00

0
55,

50
0

90
0

2
R

C
P

S
ew

er
R

eh
ab

(I
rv

in
gt

on
B

as
in

)
00

80
0

2
R

C
P

S
ew

er
R

eh
ab

(N
ew

ar
k

B
as

in
)

10
0

1,
00

0
10

0
1,

00
0

22,
20

0
90

0
2

R
C

P
S

ew
er

R
eh

ab
(N

ew
ar

k
B

as
in

)
00

80
0

0.
50

2
N

ew
ar

k
B

ac
ky

ar
d

R
el

oc
at

io
n

1,
30

0
1,

20
0

22,
50

0
90

0
0.

50
2

N
ew

ar
k

B
ac

ky
ar

d
R

el
oc

at
io

n
1,

30
0

1,
20

0
22,

50
0

80
0

1
P

in
e

S
t.

E
as

em
en

t
10

0
110

0

80
0

2
S

po
tR

ep
ai

rs
50

0
50

0
50

0
50

0
50

0
22,

50
0

90
0

2
S

po
tR

ep
ai

rs
00

C
ol

le
ct

io
ns

co
nt

'd
ne

xt
pa

ge

19
P

ag
e 

65
 o

f 1
93

P
ag

e 
65

 o
f 1

93



FF
u

n
d

%%
RR

an
k

PP
ro

je
ct

N
am

e
FF

Y
16

FF
Y

17
FF

Y
18

FF
Y

19
FF

Y
20

FF
Y

21
FF

Y
22

FF
Y

23
FF

Y
24

FF
Y

25
TT

o
ta

l
C

ol
le

ct
io

ns
co

nt
'd

90
0

2
S

te
ve

ns
on

at
D

av
is

S
t.

15
0

1,
00

0
1,

15
0

90
0

2
V

ea
sy

S
t.

S
ew

er
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
50

65
0

70
0

T
o

ta
lf

o
r

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
IO

N
S

Y
S

T
E

M
4,

25
0

6,
80

0
75

0
1,

00
0

3,
05

0
3,

30
0

5,
80

0
90

0
1,

90
0

1,
80

0
29

,5
50

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
S

Y
S

T
E

M
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

F
u

n
d

%
R

an
k

P
ro

je
ct

N
am

e
F

Y
16

F
Y

17
F

Y
18

F
Y

19
F

Y
20

F
Y

21
F

Y
22

F
Y

23
F

Y
24

F
Y

25
T

o
ta

l

80
0

0.
50

2
A

la
m

ed
a

C
re

ek
C

ro
ss

in
g

Li
ft

S
ta

tio
n

25
0

25
0

90
0

0.
50

2
A

la
m

ed
a

C
re

ek
C

ro
ss

in
g

Li
ft

S
ta

tio
n

25
0

25
0

90
0

1
E

qu
al

iz
at

io
n

S
to

ra
ge

@
A

lv
ar

ad
o

40
0

60
0

1,
00

0

90
0

3
E

qu
al

iz
at

io
n

S
to

ra
ge

@
Ir

vi
ng

to
n

30
0

3,
00

0
3,

30
0

90
0

2
E

qu
al

iz
at

io
n

S
to

ra
ge

@
N

ew
ar

k
60

0
3,

50
0

3,
50

0
7,

60
0

80
0

0.
50

1
F

re
m

on
t&

P
P

LS
\I

nt
er

na
lL

ift
P

um
ps

1,
00

0
50

0
1,

50
0

90
0

0.
50

1
F

re
m

on
t&

P
P

LS
\I

nt
er

na
lL

ift
P

um
ps

1,
00

0
50

0
1,

50
0

80
0

0.
50

2
H

ay
w

ar
d

M
ar

sh
A

m
m

on
ia

R
em

ov
al

F
ac

ili
ty

50
50

0
55

0
90

0
0.

50
2

H
ay

w
ar

d
M

ar
sh

A
m

m
on

ia
R

em
ov

al
F

ac
ili

ty
50

50
0

55
0

80
0

2
N

ew
C

he
rr

y
S

t.
P

S
30

0
3,

00
0

3,
30

0
90

0
2

N
ew

C
he

rr
y

S
t.

P
S

0

80
0

2
N

ew
ar

k
P

S
W

at
er

lin
e

50
50

80
0

3
T

ra
ns

po
rt

S
ys

te
m

M
is

c.
P

ro
je

ct
s

50
50

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
3,

10
0

90
0

3
T

ra
ns

po
rt

S
ys

te
m

M
is

c.
P

ro
je

ct
s

0

80
0

0.
50

1
W

et
W

ea
th

er
F

lo
w

M
an

ag
em

en
t

10
0

30
0

2,
50

0
2,

50
0

50
0

5,
90

0
90

0
0.

50
1

W
et

W
ea

th
er

F
lo

w
M

an
ag

em
en

t
10

0
30

0
2,

50
0

2,
50

0
50

0
5,

90
0

T
o

ta
lf

o
r

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
S

Y
S

T
E

M
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

2,
70

0
2,

25
0

5,
10

0
7,

60
0

1,
00

0
3,

80
0

7,
50

0
30

0
3,

00
0

1,
50

0
34

,7
50

20
P

ag
e 

66
 o

f 1
93

P
ag

e 
66

 o
f 1

93



FF
u

n
d

%%
RR

an
k

PP
ro

je
ct

N
am

e
FF

Y
16

FF
Y

17
FF

Y
18

FF
Y

19
FF

Y
20

FF
Y

21
FF

Y
22

FF
Y

23
FF

Y
24

FF
Y

25
TT

o
ta

l

F
u

n
d

%
R

an
k

P
ro

je
ct

N
am

e
F

Y
16

F
Y

17
F

Y
18

F
Y

19
F

Y
20

F
Y

21
F

Y
22

F
Y

23
F

Y
24

F
Y

25
T

o
ta

l

90
0

2
3r

d
D

eg
rit

te
r

S
ys

te
m

10
0

50
0

60
0

80
0

2
30

"
M

L
P

ip
e

Li
ni

ng
10

0
50

0
60

0

80
0

0.
50

2
A

er
at

io
n

In
te

rn
al

Li
ft

P
um

ps
50

0
50

0
90

0
0.

50
2

A
er

at
io

n
In

te
rn

al
Li

ft
P

um
ps

50
0

50
0

80
0

0.
50

2
A

er
at

io
n

S
ys

te
m

R
eh

ab
50

0
20

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
2,

70
0

90
0

0.
50

2
A

er
at

io
n

S
ys

te
m

R
eh

ab
50

0
20

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
2,

70
0

90
0

2
A

er
at

io
n

T
an

k
(E

as
t)

B
af

fli
ng

50
55

0
60

0

80
0

2
A

er
at

io
n

T
an

k
(E

as
t)

R
oo

f
50

1,
20

0
1,

50
0

2,
75

0

80
0

3
B

lo
w

er
B

ld
g

&
C

ha
nn

el
A

ir
D

em
o

&
R

ep
l

10
0

50
0

60
0

80
0

0.
50

1
C

og
en

P
ro

je
ct

15
0

10
0

25
0

90
0

0.
50

1
C

og
en

P
ro

je
ct

15
0

10
0

25
0

80
0

2
C

on
ta

ct
T

an
k

V
al

ve
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

80
0

2
C

on
tr

ol
B

ox
N

o.
1

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

15
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

3,
15

0

80
0

2
D

iff
us

er
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

10
0

10
0

15
0

35
0

90
0

3
D

ig
es

te
r

N
o.

7
10

0
10

0

80
0

2
E

m
er

ge
nc

y
O

ut
fa

ll
O

ut
le

tI
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
30

0
30

0

80
0

2
G

ra
vi

ty
B

el
tT

hi
ck

en
er

50
0

5,
50

0
6,

00
0

80
0

2
G

en
er

at
or

C
on

tro
ls

U
pg

ra
de

30
0

1,
00

0
1,

30
0

80
0

2
H

ea
dw

or
ks

ga
te

s,
ac

tu
at

or
s

an
d

S
cr

ee
ns

10
0

1,
50

0
1,

60
0

80
0

1
H

yp
o

T
an

k
an

d
P

V
C

pi
pe

re
pl

ac
em

en
ta

t O
50

0
1,

00
0

1,
50

0

80
0

2
M

C
C

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
60

0
10

0
60

0
1,

30
0

80
0

2
M

is
c.

E
le

ct
ric

al
E

qu
ip

m
en

tU
pg

ra
de

50
0

50
0

50
0

50
0

1,
00

0
3,

00
0

80
0

2
M

is
c.

P
ro

je
ct

s
25

0
25

0
25

0
30

0
30

0
30

0
30

0
30

0
30

0
2,

55
0

Tr
ea

tm
en

tc
on

t'd
ne

xt
pa

ge

T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T

21
P

ag
e 

67
 o

f 1
93

P
ag

e 
67

 o
f 1

93



FF
u

n
d

%%
RR

an
k

PP
ro

je
ct

N
am

e
FF

Y
16

FF
Y

17
FF

Y
18

FF
Y

19
FF

Y
20

FF
Y

21
FF

Y
22

FF
Y

23
FF

Y
24

FF
Y

25
TT

o
ta

l
Tr

ea
tm

en
tc

on
t'd

80
0

2
O

do
r

S
cr

ub
be

r
S

ys
te

m
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
55

0
5,

50
0

60
0

6,
00

0
12

,6
50

90
0

2
O

do
r

S
cr

ub
be

r
S

ys
te

m
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
0

80
0

2
P

la
nt

F
ac

ili
tie

s
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
50

0
60

0
1,

10
0

80
0

1
P

la
nt

M
as

te
r

P
la

n
E

qu
ip

m
en

tR
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
65

0
65

0
3,

30
0

5,
00

0
2,

00
0

7,
30

0
3,

30
0

22
,2

00
90

0
1

P
la

nt
M

as
te

r
P

la
n

E
qu

ip
m

en
tR

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

0

80
0

2
P

LC
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

10
0

20
0

35
0

65
0

80
0

0.
75

2
P

rim
ar

y
C

la
rif

ie
r

R
eh

ab
(5

-6
)

37
5

1,
68

8
1,

68
8

3,
75

0
90

0
0.

25
2

P
rim

ar
y

C
la

rif
ie

r
R

eh
ab

(5
-6

)
12

5
56

3
56

3
1,

25
0

80
0

2
P

rim
ar

y
E

ffl
ue

nt
(6

0"
)

P
ip

el
in

e
R

eh
ab

10
0

10
0

80
0

1
R

A
S

P
S

P
um

ps
,V

al
ve

&
P

ip
e

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
10

0
60

0
60

0
1,

30
0

80
0

2
R

ep
ai

rs
to

C
on

cr
et

e
T

an
ks

20
0

20
0

20
0

20
0

20
0

20
0

20
0

20
0

20
0

1,
80

0

80
0

0.
75

2
S

ec
.C

la
rif

ie
rs

N
o.

5
an

d
6

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n
15

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
3,

15
0

90
0

0.
25

2
S

ec
.C

la
rif

ie
rs

N
o.

5
an

d
6

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n
50

50
0

50
0

1,
05

0

90
0

3
S

ec
on

da
ry

C
la

rif
ie

rs
N

o.
7,

8
40

0
40

0

80
0

2
S

ei
sm

ic
R

et
ro

fit
of

C
on

c.
S

tr
uc

tu
re

s
20

0
2,

00
0

20
0

2,
00

0
20

0
2,

00
0

30
0

3,
00

0
30

0
10

,2
00

90
0

2
S

ei
sm

ic
R

et
ro

fit
of

C
on

c.
S

tr
uc

tu
re

s
0

80
0

2
S

lu
dg

e
D

ry
in

g
(B

A
C

W
A

)
10

0
10

0
10

0
30

0

80
0

2
S

lu
dg

e
R

ec
irc

ul
at

io
n

P
um

p
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

20
0

20
0

40
0

90
0

2
S

lu
dg

e
R

ec
irc

ul
at

io
n

P
um

p
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

0

80
0

2
S

ta
nd

by
G

en
er

at
or

s
5

an
d

6
15

0
2,

50
0

2,
65

0

80
0

2
S

ta
nd

by
G

en
er

at
or

s
7

an
d

8
20

0
4,

00
0

4,
20

0

90
0

2
S

to
rm

W
at

er
D

iv
er

si
on

P
um

p
S

ta
tio

n
20

0
1,

50
0

1,
70

0

80
0

0.
75

1
T

hi
ck

en
er

C
on

tr
ol

B
ld

g
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
4,

12
5

37
5

4,
50

0
90

0
0.

25
1

T
hi

ck
en

er
C

on
tr

ol
B

ld
g

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

1,
37

5
12

5
1,

50
0

80
0

2
T

hi
ck

en
er

M
ec

ha
ni

sm
s

1-
2

10
0

2,
20

0
2,

30
0

90
0

2
T

hi
ck

en
er

M
ec

ha
ni

sm
s

1-
2

0

80
0

2
T

ru
ck

S
ca

le
s

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

10
0

10
0

Tr
ea

tm
en

tc
on

t'd
ne

xt
pa

ge

22
P

ag
e 

68
 o

f 1
93

P
ag

e 
68

 o
f 1

93



FF
u

n
d

%%
RR

an
k

PP
ro

je
ct

N
am

e
FF

Y
16

FF
Y

17
FF

Y
18

FF
Y

19
FF

Y
20

FF
Y

21
FF

Y
22

FF
Y

23
FF

Y
24

FF
Y

25
TT

o
ta

l
Tr

ea
tm

en
tc

on
t'd

80
0

2
W

at
er

S
to

ra
ge

T
an

k
an

d
W

el
l

20
0

10
0

30
0

90
0

2
W

as
te

R
ec

yc
lin

g
an

d
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e
E

ne
rg

y
50

0
5,

00
0

5,
50

0

T
o

ta
lf

o
r

T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
9,

50
0

8,
65

0
13

,8
50

14
,7

00
17

,9
00

7,
30

0
8,

55
0

13
,8

00
11

,4
00

11
,6

00
11

7,
25

0

G
R

A
N

D
T

O
T

A
L

16
,7

50
23

,2
50

26
,2

00
23

,6
00

21
,9

50
14

,6
50

21
,8

50
15

,0
00

16
,3

00
14

,9
00

19
4,

45
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
F

U
N

D
80

0
-

S
tr

u
ct

u
ra

lR
en

ew
al

&
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

11
,7

25
18

,4
00

20
,8

88
17

,7
38

18
,3

00
10

,1
50

17
,8

50
9,

70
0

13
,3

00
14

,1
50

15
2,

20
0

F
U

N
D

90
0

-
C

ap
ac

it
y

5,
02

5
4,

85
0

5,
31

3
5,

86
3

3,
65

0
4,

50
0

4,
00

0
5,

30
0

3,
00

0
75

0
42

,2
50

23
P

ag
e 

69
 o

f 1
93

P
ag

e 
69

 o
f 1

93



FY
 2

01
6 

B
ud

ge
t -

am
ou

nt
s

x
$1

,0
00

)
A

S
S

U
M

P
TI

O
N

S
 (L

on
g-

Te
rm

)
D

eb
t S

um
m

ar
y 

- A
t 2

02
0

D
eb

t S
um

m
ar

y 
- A

t 2
02

5
In

te
re

st
 R

at
e 

- B
on

ds
, S

R
F

2.
70

%
S

R
F 

Lo
an

s 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 - 

S
S

C
$4

3,
81

8
S

R
F 

Lo
an

s 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 - 

S
S

C
$3

0,
24

7
C

IP
 In

fla
tio

n 
R

at
e

3.
50

%
S

R
F 

Lo
an

s 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 - 

C
ap

ac
ity

21
,0

82
S

R
F 

Lo
an

s 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 - 

C
ap

ac
ity

15
,4

22
In

ve
st

m
en

t R
at

e
0.

60
%

To
ta

l S
R

F 
Lo

an
s 

&
 o

th
er

 D
eb

t O
ut

st
an

di
ng

$6
4,

90
0

To
ta

l  
S

R
F 

Lo
an

s 
&

 o
th

er
 D

eb
t O

ut
st

an
di

ng
$4

5,
66

9
C

IP
 F

un
di

ng
 @

90
%

C
IP

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
- 2

01
6-

20
20

C
IP

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
- 2

01
6 

- 2
02

5
R

en
ew

al
 &

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 S

S
C

$7
8,

34
6

R
en

ew
al

 &
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t -

 S
S

C
13

6,
98

1
A

m
ou

nt
s 

x$
10

00
, e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 n

ot
ed

.
C

ap
ac

ity
 F

un
d

22
,2

31
C

ap
ac

ity
 F

un
d

38
,0

26
To

ta
l C

IP
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

@
 9

0%
$1

00
,5

77
To

ta
l C

IP
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

@
 9

0%
17

5,
00

7
R

at
e 

S
tu

dy
 Im

pa
ct

C
ap

ac
ity

 F
ee

 In
cr

ea
se

5.
00

%
5.

00
%

5.
00

%
5.

00
%

5.
00

%
5.

00
%

5.
00

%
5.

00
%

5.
00

%
5.

00
%

5.
00

%
S

S
C

 In
cr

ea
se

5.
70

%
5.

70
%

5.
70

%
5.

70
%

5.
70

%
5.

00
%

5.
00

%
5.

00
%

5.
00

%
5.

00
%

5.
00

%
R

at
e 

M
od

el
 T

im
e 

Pe
rio

d 
(m

us
t m

at
ch

 ti
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

be
lo

w
)

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
rs

 E
nd

in
g 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20
20

21
20

22
20

23
20

24
20

25
Pr

oj
ec

tio
n

R
es

id
en

tia
l (

E
D

U
) I

nc
re

as
e 

(G
ro

w
th

) -
 1

 y
ea

r l
ag

 in
 ra

te
s

0.
25

%
0.

40
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 In

cr
ea

se
   

 (M
em

o 
on

ly
 h

er
e)

0.
00

%
3.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
In

du
st

ria
l I

nc
re

as
e 

   
   

  (
M

em
o 

on
ly

 h
er

e)
0.

00
%

3.
00

%
0.

00
%

0.
20

%
0.

40
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

0.
50

%
0.

50
%

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 B
ud

ge
t

1.
52

%
4.

60
%

4.
00

%
4.

00
%

4.
00

%
4.

00
%

4.
00

%
4.

00
%

4.
00

%
4.

00
%

4.
00

%

C
ap

ac
ity

 F
ee

 C
ha

rg
e 

(w
ho

le
 $

)
$5

,5
96

$5
,8

75
$6

,1
69

$6
,4

77
$6

,8
01

$7
,1

41
$7

,4
98

$7
,8

73
$8

,2
67

$8
,6

80
$9

,1
14

S
ew

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

e 
(S

FD
) (

w
ho

le
 $

)
$3

57
$3

77
$3

98
$4

21
$4

45
$4

67
$4

90
$5

15
$5

41
$5

68
$5

96

C
AS

H
 F

LO
W

 P
R

O
JE

C
TI

O
N

S

Se
w

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 F

un
d

   
   

  B
eg

in
ni

ng
 B

al
an

ce
   

(F
un

d 
80

 +
 F

PR
)

$4
,2

03
$7

,4
03

$1
0,

44
6

$5
,5

51
$1

,0
37

$1
,9

95
$4

,8
02

$1
8,

36
2

$2
7,

30
6

$4
5,

50
7

$6
4,

37
3

R
ev

en
ue

   
 N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

 (S
S

C
+I

nt
+O

P
R

ev
-G

ro
ss

 O
P

 E
xp

-P
ro

v)
13

,7
24

11
,5

75
13

,7
68

16
,9

54
19

,5
92

21
,9

46
25

,4
63

27
,7

78
29

,7
00

33
,6

04
35

,4
71

   
 L

oa
n 

P
ay

m
en

ts
 fr

om
 C

ap
ac

ity
 F

un
d

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
   

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 T

ra
ns

fe
r T

o/
Fr

om
 C

ap
ac

ity
 F

un
d

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
   

 S
R

F 
Lo

an
/S

G
IP

 P
ro

ce
ed

s
3,

91
9

4,
22

5
10

0
10

0
10

0
10

0
0

0
0

0
25

0

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

   
 C

IP
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

12
,2

40
10

,5
53

16
,5

60
18

,7
99

15
,9

64
16

,4
70

9,
13

5
16

,0
65

8,
73

0
11

,9
70

12
,7

35
   

 L
oa

ns
 to

 C
ap

ac
ity

 F
un

d
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

   
 D

eb
t S

er
vi

ci
ng

 - 
N

ew
 Is

su
es

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
   

 D
eb

t S
er

vi
ci

ng
 - 

S
R

F 
Lo

an
2,

20
4

2,
20

4
2,

20
4

2,
76

9
2,

76
9

2,
76

9
2,

76
9

2,
76

9
2,

76
9

2,
76

9
2,

08
7

   
   

  E
nd

in
g 

B
al

an
ce

$7
,4

03
$1

0,
44

6
$5

,5
51

$1
,0

37
$1

,9
95

$4
,8

02
$1

8,
36

2
$2

7,
30

6
$4

5,
50

7
$6

4,
37

3
$8

5,
27

2

  O
th

er
 D

es
ig

na
te

d 
R

es
er

ve
s 

(fu
nd

s 
#3

0,
40

,5
0,

60
,7

0,
75

,8
5,

SR
F,

IN
S,

C
F,

27
,7

72
28

,6
00

29
,5

83
30

,5
27

31
,3

91
31

,9
14

32
,7

20
32

,8
39

34
,3

74
34

,9
77

35
,5

34
C

as
h 

in
 b

an
k)

To
ta

l S
ew

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

$3
5,

17
5

$3
9,

04
7

$3
5,

13
3

$3
1,

56
4

$3
3,

38
6

$3
6,

71
6

$5
1,

08
1

$6
0,

14
5

$7
9,

88
1

$9
9,

35
0

$1
20

,8
05

C
ap

ac
ity

 F
un

d 
(C

ap
ac

ity
 F

ee
s)

   
   

  B
eg

in
ni

ng
 B

al
an

ce
$1

4,
16

5
$1

6,
35

1
$1

6,
88

3
$1

4,
72

2
$1

1,
81

9
$8

,4
04

$6
,9

59
$8

,1
41

$8
,8

58
$5

,4
11

$4
,0

14

R
ev

en
ue

   
 In

te
re

st
 in

co
m

e
12

5
13

0
10

2
89

72
51

43
52

59
38

30
   

 C
ap

ac
ity

 F
ee

s
4,

20
0

4,
37

2
2,

80
0

2,
80

0
2,

80
0

2,
80

0
2,

80
0

2,
80

0
2,

80
0

2,
80

0
2,

80
0

   
 T

em
po

ra
ry

 T
ra

ns
fe

r T
o/

Fr
om

 E
xi

st
in

g 
Fu

nd
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

   
 S

G
IP

 P
ro

ce
ed

s
84

5
10

0
10

0
10

0
10

0
10

0
0

0
0

0
0

   
 S

R
F 

Lo
an

 P
ro

ce
ed

s
1,

02
5

1,
37

5
12

5
0

0
0

3,
50

0
3,

00
0

0
0

25
0

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

   
 C

IP
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

3,
08

7
4,

52
3

4,
36

5
4,

78
2

5,
27

7
3,

28
5

4,
05

0
3,

60
0

4,
77

0
2,

70
0

67
5

   
 L

oa
n 

P
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 R
 &

 R
 F

un
d

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
   

 D
eb

t S
er

vi
ci

ng
 - 

S
R

F 
Lo

an
92

3
92

3
92

3
1,

11
1

1,
11

1
1,

11
1

1,
11

1
1,

53
6

1,
53

6
1,

53
6

1,
30

9

   
   

  E
nd

in
g 

B
al

an
ce

$1
6,

35
1

$1
6,

88
3

$1
4,

72
2

$1
1,

81
9

$8
,4

04
$6

,9
59

$8
,1

41
$8

,8
58

$5
,4

11
$4

,0
14

$5
,1

10

%
 O

F 
D

EB
T 

SE
R

VI
C

E 
TO

 G
R

O
SS

 R
EV

EN
U

ES
5.

8%
5.

7%
5.

6%
6.

5%
6.

1%
5.

7%
5.

3%
5.

6%
5.

3%
5.

0%
3.

8%
D

eb
t C

ap
ac

ity
 T

ar
ge

t (
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

25
%

 o
f O

p 
+ 

D
eb

t)
8.

9%
8.

5%
8.

2%
9.

6%
9.

3%
9.

0%
8.

7%
9.

2%
8.

9%
8.

6%
6.

6%
R

at
io

 o
f d

eb
t s

er
vi

ce
 to

 S
SC

 N
et

 R
ev

 (m
in

. 1
.3

0 
pe

r D
eb

t p
ol

ic
y#

20
60

)
5.

79
5.

17
5.

77
5.

30
6.

00
6.

60
7.

52
7.

33
7.

92
8.

50
11

.6
1

B
O

N
D

IN
G

 C
AP

AC
IT

Y 
- A

bo
ve

 1
.2

5 
co

ve
ra

ge
17

3,
69

6
15

0,
09

9
17

3,
12

5
19

2,
28

1
22

5,
38

0
25

3,
81

6
29

7,
73

5
32

0,
47

4
35

1,
40

8
38

1,
97

2
43

0,
53

3

10
 y

r F
in

 P
la

n 
FY

16
 - 

5.
7%

 0
52

11
5C

IP
-A

C
TI

V
E

 w
 re

co
ve

ry
7/

7/
20

15
9:

00
 A

M
24

P
ag

e 
70

 o
f 1

93
P

ag
e 

70
 o

f 1
93



DDirectors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

OOfficers
Paul R. Eldredge 

David M. O’Hara 

DDATE: July 7, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Rollie R. Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 13 - Meeting of July 13, 2015 
Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Lease Agreement with the
California State Lands Commission for a Sewer Crossing at Scott Creek in the
City of Fremont

Recommendation

Authorize the General Manager to execute the attached lease agreement with the California 
State Lands Commission for a 12-inch diameter sanitary sewer pipeline within a 30-inch 
diameter steel casing crossing Scott Creek in the city of Fremont. 

Background

The Crossings development is located at the southernmost portion of the District’s service area 
and includes the new construction of three large industrial buildings and the extension of 
Fremont Boulevard to Dixon Landing Road and the border of the city of Milpitas.  A location map 
is attached.  In order for the District to serve the development, new sewer lines were 
constructed that extend from the existing sewers on Fremont Boulevard and Lakeview 
Boulevard.  The new 12-inch sewer line continues south along Fremont Boulevard, under and 
across an Alameda County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (ACFC) channel and 
across Scott Creek, which is considered State Lands managed by the State Lands Commission 
(SLC). 

In order to accept the new sewer main, District staff has negotiated a lease agreement with the 
SLC granting permission for the sewer line to be located under Scott Creek.  Although a 

Page 71 of 193Page 71 of 193



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of July 13, 2015 
Page 2 

permanent easement was sought, the SLC only grants lease agreements for encroachments 
across State Lands.  A Resolution accepting the easement across the ACFC channel will be 
presented to the Board under a separate agenda item during the regularly scheduled meeting of 
July 13, 2015.  All costs associated with the lease agreement were borne by the developer, 
Overton Moore Properties. 

The sewer lines were constructed per District standard specifications.  District staff has reviewed 
the lease agreement and exhibits, and recommends authorizing the General Manager to execute 
the lease agreement. 

PRE/SEG/RRA:ks 

Attachments: Location Map 
  Lease Agreement 

Page 72 of 193Page 72 of 193



fo
r 

Th
e 

C
ro

ss
in

gs
Lo

ca
ti

on
 M

ap

D
is

cl
ai

m
er

:
Th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 t
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 U
ni

on
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

(U
S
D

) 
fo

r 
in

te
rn

al
 u

se
 o

nl
y.

  
S
uc

h 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
is

 d
er

iv
ed

 f
ro

m
 m

ul
tip

le
 s

ou
rc

es
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

cu
rr

en
t,

 b
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

f 
U

S
D

, 
an

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
of

 
in

de
te

rm
in

at
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

. 
 T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 h

er
eo

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
in

ac
cu

ra
te

 o
r 

ou
t 

of
 d

at
e 

an
d 

an
y 

pe
rs

on
 o

r 
en

tit
y 

w
ho

 r
el

ie
s 

on
 s

ai
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

an
y 

pu
rp

os
e 

w
ha

ts
oe

ve
r 

do
es

 s
o 

so
le

ly
 a

t 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

ri
sk

.

Fo
r 

U
S

D
 u

se
 o

n
ly

Le
g

en
d

0
11

00
ft

55
0

Pr
in

te
d:

 7
/7

/2
01

5 
9:

40
:5

9 
A
M

P
ag

e 
73

 o
f 1

93
P

ag
e 

73
 o

f 1
93

A
C

FC
C

ha
nn

el
S

ew
er

C
ro

ss
in

g

A
C

FC
C

ha
nn

el
B

S
LC

's
S

co
tt

C
re

ek

S
co

tt
C

re
ek

S
ew

er
C

ro
ss

in
g

Th
e

C
ro

ss
in

gs
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t

D
ix

on
La

nd
in

g
R

d.



Page 74 of 193Page 74 of 193



Page 75 of 193Page 75 of 193



Page 76 of 193Page 76 of 193



Page 77 of 193Page 77 of 193



Page 78 of 193Page 78 of 193



Page 79 of 193Page 79 of 193



Page 80 of 193Page 80 of 193



Page 81 of 193Page 81 of 193



Page 82 of 193Page 82 of 193



Page 83 of 193Page 83 of 193



Page 84 of 193Page 84 of 193



Page 85 of 193Page 85 of 193



Page 86 of 193Page 86 of 193



Page 87 of 193Page 87 of 193



Page 88 of 193Page 88 of 193



Page 89 of 193Page 89 of 193



Page 90 of 193Page 90 of 193



Page 91 of 193Page 91 of 193



DDirectors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

OOfficers
Paul R. Eldredge 

David M. O’Hara 

DDATE:  July 7, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager / District Engineer 
  Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
  Rollie R. Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14 - Meeting of July 13, 2015 
Resolution No. _____ Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement from the Alameda
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District located near Fremont
Boulevard and Lakeview Boulevard in the City of Fremont

Recommendation

Accept one sanitary sewer easement from the Alameda County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District by adoption of resolution. 

Background

The Crossings development is located at the southernmost portion of the District’s service area 
and includes the new construction of three large industrial buildings and the extension of 
Fremont Boulevard to Dixon Landing Road and the border of the city of Milpitas.  A location map 
is attached.  In order for the District to serve the development, new sewer lines were constructed 
that extend from the existing sewers on Fremont Boulevard and Lakeview Boulevard.  The new 
12-inch sewer line continues south along Fremont Boulevard, under and across an Alameda 
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (ACFC) channel and across Scott Creek, 
which is considered State Lands managed by the State Lands Commission (SLC).  Within the 
channel and creek crossing limits, the new 12-inch sewer is protected within a 30-inch steel 
casing. 

Page 92 of 193Page 92 of 193



Agenda Item No. 14 
Meeting of July 13, 2015 
Page 2  

In order to accept the new sewer main within the ACFC channel, District staff negotiated a grant 
of easement with the ACFC.  The sewer lines were constructed per District standard 
specifications and the ACFC has provided the grant of easement for the Board’s acceptance.  A 
recommendation for authorizing the General Manager to execute a lease agreement with the 
SLC will be presented to the Board under a separate agenda item during the regularly scheduled 
meeting of July 13, 2015. 

District staff has reviewed the grant deed, legal description, and plat and recommends approval. 

PRE/SEG/RRA:ks 

Attachments: Location Map 
Resolution 
Grant of Easement 

Page 93 of 193Page 93 of 193



fo
r 

Th
e 

C
ro

ss
in

gs
Lo

ca
ti

on
 M

ap

D
is

cl
ai

m
er

:
Th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 t
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 U
ni

on
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

(U
S
D

) 
fo

r 
in

te
rn

al
 u

se
 o

nl
y.

  
S
uc

h 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
is

 d
er

iv
ed

 f
ro

m
 m

ul
tip

le
 s

ou
rc

es
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

cu
rr

en
t,

 b
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

f 
U

S
D

, 
an

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
of

 
in

de
te

rm
in

at
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

. 
 T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 h

er
eo

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
in

ac
cu

ra
te

 o
r 

ou
t 

of
 d

at
e 

an
d 

an
y 

pe
rs

on
 o

r 
en

tit
y 

w
ho

 r
el

ie
s 

on
 s

ai
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

an
y 

pu
rp

os
e 

w
ha

ts
oe

ve
r 

do
es

 s
o 

so
le

ly
 a

t 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

ri
sk

.

Fo
r 

U
S

D
 u

se
 o

n
ly

Le
g

en
d

0
11

00
ft

55
0

Pr
in

te
d:

 7
/7

/2
01

5 
9:

40
:5

9 
A
M

P
ag

e 
94

 o
f 1

93
P

ag
e 

94
 o

f 1
93

A
C

FC
C

ha
nn

el
S

ew
er

C
ro

ss
in

g

A
C

FC
C

ha
nn

el
B

S
LC

's
S

co
tt

C
re

ek

S
co

tt
C

re
ek

S
ew

er
C

ro
ss

in
g

Th
e

C
ro

ss
in

gs
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t

D
ix

on
La

nd
in

g
R

d.



RESOLUTION NO. ____

ACCEPTANCE OF ONE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT 
LOCATED AT FREMONT BOULEVARD AND ALAMEDA COUNTY FLOOD 

CONTROL ZONE 6 CHANNEL B IN  
FREMONT, CA

RESOLVED:  That the Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
hereby accepts the easement deed granted by the Alameda County Flood Control and 
Water Conservation District and described by the legal description attached as Exhibit A.

Attachment – Exhibit A

On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the following 
vote on July 13, 2015:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

__________________________
MANNY FERNANDEZ
President, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

Attest:

_________________________
TOM HANDLEY 
Secretary, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

Page 95 of 193Page 95 of 193



Page 96 of 193Page 96 of 193



Page 97 of 193Page 97 of 193



Page 98 of 193Page 98 of 193



Page 99 of 193Page 99 of 193



Page 100 of 193Page 100 of 193



Page 101 of 193Page 101 of 193



Page 102 of 193Page 102 of 193



Directors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

DATE: July 1, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 15 - Meeting of July 13, 2015 
 Election of Officers for the Board of Directors for FY 2016 

Recommendation

Boardmembers confirm the selection of the offices of President, Vice President, and Secretary for Fiscal 
Year 2016, in accordance with the attached policy. 

Background 

The current policy was approved by the Board in October 2013, and provides for the offices of 
President, Vice President, and Secretary.  It further states that annually, nominations will be made for 
each office, and secret ballots shall be cast for each office separately, with the vote of the majority of 
Directors of the Board required for election.  The Board may choose to waive the requirement for 
secret ballot and conduct elections by voice vote. 

Apparent past practice during election years was to swear in new and re-elected Boardmembers, 
followed immediately by the selection of the Board officers.  During non-election years, the selection of 
the Board officers was considered after the last motion item on the agenda.  It would be staff’s 
recommendation to continue with this practice, however it is the Board’s discretion to modify this 
procedure. 

Historically, the Board has followed a rotation of officers, where Vice President becomes President, 
Secretary becomes Vice President, and the 4th member in rotation becomes Secretary.  At present, 
Director Toy is Vice President, Director Handley is Secretary, and Director Kite is the 4th member in the 
rotation. 

In an attempt to simplify the process staff recommends Director Fernandez, who has served as 
President for the past year, adjourn the July 13, 2015, Board meeting.  Staff further recommends the 
newly elected Board officers assume their duties immediately following the meeting. 

Attachment: Board Policy 3070.2, Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership 

Page 103 of 193Page 103 of 193



Union Sanitary District 
Policy and Procedure Manual 

Effective:
10/14/13

Boardmember Policy Number 
3070.2

Officers and Committee Membership Page 1 of 3

Policy

Selection of Board Officers will be held annually at the first regular meeting in the month of 
July.  No later than the second regular meeting in July of each year, Committee memberships 
will be established. 

Purpose

To provide a written record of the procedure approved by the Board for electing its Officers and 
establishing its committee memberships.

Procedure

Board Officers 

1. The Officers are President, Vice President, and Secretary.  Term of office shall be for one 
year.

2. The President shall preside over the meetings of the Board of Directors and be responsible 
for the following: 

 a. maintaining order and following the published agenda
 b. ensuring Boardmembers are allowed to participate in discussions 
 c. allowing the public to speak on agenda items 
 d. facilitating dialog among the public, staff, and Boardmembers 
 e. appointment of members of the Board of Directors to Committee assignments 
 f. signing resolutions, ordinances, and construction contracts on behalf of the District 
 g. representing the Board of Directors on issues or at events as designated by the full 

board

The Vice President shall fulfill the duties of the President when the President is absent or 
otherwise unavailable. 

The Secretary shall ensure the recording of the minutes of the Board of Directors meetings 
and sign the adopted Minutes, shall sign all Resolutions and Ordinances passed by the 
District, and shall serve as Vice President when the Vice President is absent or otherwise 
unavailable.  If the President and Vice President are both absent, and a quorum is present, 
the Secretay shall serve as the Board President. 

Page 104 of 193Page 104 of 193



Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership Policy Number 3070.2 
Page 2 of 3 

3. Annually, at the first regular meeting in July, nominations will be made for each officer, 
and secret ballots shall be cast for each office separately, with the vote of the majority of 
Directors of the Board required for election.  In the event no nominee receives a majority 
vote in the first ballot, the nominee having the least votes shall be dropped from the ballot 
and additional ballots successively cast, as necessary, to produce a majority vote.  The 
Board may choose to waive the requirement for secret ballot and conduct election by voice 
vote.

Board Committee Memberships—Internal Standing and Ad Hoc Committees 

1. Annually, following the election of Board officers, Directors are responsible for letting the 
President know their interest in serving on internal standing and ad hoc committees (listed 
under Nos. 3 and 4). 

2. The President will appoint Directors to the internal standing and ad hoc committees.  
Notice of internal committee membership appointments will be contained in an information 
item to the Board at the second regular meeting in July. 

3. Internal standing committees are:  Budget and Finance; Construction; Legal/Community 
Affairs; Legislative; Personnel, and Audit Committee. 

4. Ad Hoc committees are called as needed. 

Representatives — Board External Commissions/Committees 
1. The Board of Directors will elect the representatives for the External Committees no later 

than the first meeting of the Board of Directors in June, so that the representatives may be 
seated for the first meeting of the new fiscal year.  Secret ballots shall be cast for 
representatives and alternates to external commissions and committees (listed under No. 2 
below).

2. External commissions/committees include:  the EBDA Commission; the Joint Powers 
Authority for Geographic Information Systems; and the Alameda County Chapter of the 
California Special Districts Association. 

3. Directors interested in external representative or alternate to commissions/committees are 
to make their wishes known.  Following which, secret ballots shall be cast separately, with 
each Boardmember voting for the representative to each group listed above under No. 2.  
The Director receiving the highest number of votes will be the representative.  If there is 
not a clear majority, the nominee having the least number of votes shall be dropped from 
the ballot, and additional ballots successively cast, as necessary, to produce a majority 
vote.  This process will then be repeated for the alternate representative.  The Board may 
choose to waive the requirement for secret ballot and conduct the selection by voice vote. 

Page 105 of 193Page 105 of 193



Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership Policy Number 3070.2 
Page 3 of 3 

Management Responsibility

The General Manager will be responsible for scheduling on the Board agenda, the election of 
External Committee representatives by early June, and the election of Board Officers at the first 
regular meeting in July.  The GM will provide a list of current committee memberships to the 
new President and blank ballot forms for election use as needed. The General Manager will also 
be responsible for scheduling on the Board agenda the announcement of committee 
appointments at the second regular meeting in July. 

Supersedes Policy Dated:  July 2004, September 2005, January 2008, September 2010 

Approved by: Board of Directors  October 14, 2013 
Reviewers:    General Manager, Board of Directors, District’s attorney 
Notify Person:  General Manager 
Review frequency:   Every 3 years 
Next Review:    October 2016 

Page 106 of 193Page 106 of 193



P
ag

e 
10

7 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
10

7 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
10

8 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
10

8 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
10

9 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
10

9 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
11

0 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
11

0 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
11

1 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
11

1 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
11

2 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
11

2 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
11

3 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
11

3 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
11

4 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
11

4 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
11

5 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
11

5 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
11

6 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
11

6 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
11

7 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
11

7 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
11

8 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
11

8 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
11

9 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
11

9 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
12

0 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
12

0 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
12

1 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
12

1 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
12

2 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
12

2 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
12

3 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
12

3 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
12

4 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
12

4 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
12

5 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
12

5 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
12

6 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
12

6 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
12

7 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
12

7 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
12

8 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
12

8 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
12

9 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
12

9 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
13

0 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
13

0 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
13

1 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
13

1 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
13

2 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
13

2 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
13

3 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
13

3 
of

 1
93



P
ag

e 
13

4 
of

 1
93

P
ag

e 
13

4 
of

 1
93


